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PURPOSE STATEMENT 
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VISION STATEMENT 
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Our ne t  earnings consistently average in the  75.80 percentile as compared with our  national peer 
group. This  performance is driven by growth in  our  traditional banking and  wealth management  
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William County,  and  neighboring markets.  
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LETTER To SHAREHOLDERS 

Dear Shareholder: 

February 2003 marked our 102nd year as a locally owned, independent community 
Rank. This fact has rising signilicance given we are now the only locally owned, 
independent community B ank serving our marketplace . 

We are pleased to present our annual report on your investment in Fauquier Bankshares, 
Inc. (NASDAQ SmallCap: FBSS). We continue to provide the return you expect as 
an owner; and, our customers continue to enjoy the advantages of being served by 
your locally owned community bank. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

=Net Income was $4.3 million in 2003, an increase of 10.3% from $3.9 million in 2002. On apcr share 
basis, earnings increased on a fully diluted per share basis over 8.8%, to $1.24 per share in 2003 
compared with $1.14 per share a year earlier. Return on average equity and return on average assets 
were 15.84% and 1.24%, respectively, compared with 15.74% and 1.29% in 2002. 

*Bank deposit and loan growth continued in 2003. Total deposits rose by $47.5 million or nearly 17.3% 
from 2002 to 2003. Total loans, net of allowance for loan losses, grew $81.6 million, or 38.2% over 
the same time period. 

*Credit quality remained strong, evidenced by a 0.04% net charge-off to average loan ratio. At De- 
cember 31, 2003, non-performing assets represented only 0.33% of total loans, down from 0.39% a 
year earlier. 

Assets managed by TFB Wealth Management Services, a division of The Fauquier Bank, grew nearly 
28%J, to $219 million in 2003. 

*The Company’s capital strength continued to be deemed “well-capitalized” by the regulators. Fauquier 
Bankshares, Inc.’s leverage, tier 1 risk-based, and total capital risk-based ratios were 8.S8%, 11.51% 
and 12.76%, respectively, at December 3 1,2003. 

*Your cash dividend for 2003 was $0.48 per share, an increase of over 17% from 2002. 
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STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT AND DIRECTION 

In June 2003, Randy K. Ferrell was named chief executive officer of The Fauquicr Bank. In May 2004, Fauquier 
Bankshares, Inc. plans to name Mr. Ferrell its new chief executive officer. Current CEO C. Hunton Tiffany steps down 
on June 1st. He will continue to act as chairman of the bank and the holding company, steering strategic direction 
and business development. 

Sustained growth in all product and service lines has facilitated plans for future Bank expansion. During the second 
quarter of 2004, our ninth fu l l  service branch will open in Bcaleton. Our expansion plans call for an additional branch 
location in the northern Fauquier/westcrn Prince William area in 2005. The new locations are a response to consumer 
demand for a locally-owned community bank presence. We look forward to serving these attractive growing neighbor- 
hoods, supporting our commitment to developing local markets and becoming the bank of choice. 

TFB Wealth Management Services accomplished notable growth in 2003. The economic unccrtainties that pervade the 
marketplace continued to draw clients to our locally based financial consultants. In 2003, we continued the stratcgy of 
integrating the fuller array of financial services into our traditional mix by licensing ten additional retail bankers to 
sell financial products.. This group works directly with our clients augmenting the efforts of our Financial Services 
and Trust Officers within Wealth Management Services. In the last quarter of 2003, we began a brand recognition 
marketing program through the print media in our local marketplace. The 2004 phase of the campaign is targeted 
toward our aflluent customer base. 

Process management is another key to our success. The financial services industry is discovering new methods of 
autonomy for institutions and consumers alike. A significant threshold was crossed on October 28, 2003 when the 
Check 21 Act was passed; facilitating the electronic exchangc of check images. Advantages include fastcr check 
processing and added security. The Fauquier Bank is well-positioned to maximizc your return on the new technologi- 
cal opportunities presented by this legislation. 

Our outlook for the future remains positive and focused. We will maintain our vision - that o fa  high performance, in- 
dependent, customer focused community resource. Wc will capitaliLe on opportunities and build on our progress. 

On behalf of your Board of Directors, management and associates, we are grateful for your continucd loyalty and 
support. We remain committed to providing the best possible return on your investment and Muking Your Financial 
Lij[~ Eusier as Fauquier Bankshares, Inc. looks toward another prosperous year. 

C. Hun ton Tiffany Randy K. Ferrell 
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The sclected consolidated financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Rcsults of Operation” and the consolidated financial statements and accompanying tiotes included clsewhere 
in this report. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to bc expected for  any future period. 

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
At and for the Year Ended December 3 I ,  

(Dollnrs in 6/lou!iinds. except per shore dicta) 2003 2002 200 1 2000 1999 

$ 17,129 
6 . 0 4 3  

1 1,086 
- 6 9 5  

10,391 
2,433 

EARNINGS STATEMENT DATA: 
luterest income 
Interest expense 
Net intcrcst income 
Provision for loan losses 
Net intercst income after prrwision 

for loan losses 
Nonintercst income 
Securities gains (losses) 
Noninterest expense 
Incolne hefore income taxes 

income taxes 
Net income 

$ 19,136 
4.001 

15,135 
-784 

$ 19,496 
5.083 

14,414 
-346 

$ 19,785 
7.221 

12,564 
350 

$ I 8,002 
-6rn 

11,918 
~ 457 

1435 1 
4,780 

248 
-13.222 

6.157 
1.821 
u 

14,068 

34 
- 17 79b 

5,672 
-- 1.742 
a 

3.866 
12,214 
3,836 

11,461 
2,842 
(111) 

-. 9.665 
4,527 

-1.430 
a 

- ,  10.938 
5,112 

1 . 2 9 7  
a 

9.023 
3.80 I 

- 1.167 
a 

PER SHARE DATA: (1) 
Net income per share, basic 
Net income per share. diluted 
Cash dividends 
Average basic shares outstanding 
Averagc diluted shares outstanding 
Book value at period end 

1.31 
1.24 
0.48 

3,308,124 

8.59 
3 , 4 8 0 , ~ ~ ~  

1.18 
1.14 
0.4 I 

3,3 12,084 
3,460,128 

8.00 

I .03 
1.01 
0.36 

3,406,866 
3,473,696 

7.21 

0.88 
0.8.3 
0.32 

3.510,364 
3,533,546 

6.55 

0.73 
0.73 
0.28 

3,604,330 
3,636.264 

5.98 

BALANCE SHEET DATA: 
Totd Assets 
Loans, net 
Iavestment securities 
Deposits 
Shareholders’ equity 

PERFORMANCE RATIOS: 
Net interest tnargin(2) 
Return o n  average assets 
Return on average cquity 
Dividend payout 
Efticieiicy ratio(?) 

$ 378,4ho 
255,312 
52,386 

321,129 
28.463 

$ 321,499 
2 13,698 
7 1,137 

273,668 
26.43 I 

$ 285.202 
207,453 

243.747 
24, I57 

36.908 

$ 249,855 

16,956 
212,103 
22,4 I9 

i~7,875 
$ 233.208 

181,503 
18,779 

187,273 
2 1.204 

4.80% 
1.24%) 

15.84% 
35.08% 
65.17% 

5.24% 
129%) 

15.74% 
34.5 I % 
66.44%) 

5.02% 
1.28% 

14.73% 
34.76% 
65.78% 

5.56% 
1.32% 

14.13% 
36.09% 
64.69% 

5.35% 
1.14% 

12.50% 
34.34% 
63.5 I % 

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS: 
Allowancc lor loan losses to period 

Nonperforining loans to allowance fin 

Nom-performing assets to period end loans 

Net charge-ol‘fs to average loans 

end loans, net 

loan losscs 

and other real estate owned 

1.206 

27.06% 

0.33% 
0.04% 

1348  

2?.20% 

0.39% 
0 .  I470 

I .3(i%j 1.21% 

4.74% 

0.06%, 
0.10% 

1.24% 

5.49% 

0.07% 
0.15% 

31.96%> 

0.438 
0.0270 

CAPITAL AND 1.IQUlDITY RAM)S. 
1,everagc 
Rlsk R a d  Capital Ratios: 
Tier 1 capital 
Total capital 

x.sx‘)oo 

11.51% 
12.76% 

9 3 %  

14.26% 
15.52% 

8.30% 9.13% 

11.96% 
13.21%, 

8.noo/u 

12.20% 
13.40% 

12.00% 
13.256 

( I )  Amounts have been rcstaied to rcfleci a two-foi--one stock split during 2002. 
(2) Net interest margin i s  calculated as fully taxable cyuivaleiit net interest income dividcd by average earning assets and represents the Corporation’s net yield or1 its 

earning assets. 
(3) lifticiency ratio is computed hy dividing non-interest expense hy the sum o r  fiilly taxahle equivalent net interest incornc and non-interest income. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CON1)I‘IION ANI) KESUIA’S OF OPERATION 

The following discussion is qualificd in its cntircty by the more detailed information and the financial statements and accompanying notes appearing 
elsewhere in this Annual Keport. In addition to the historical inforrnation contained herein, this report contains forward-looking statcmcnts. Forward- 
looking statcincnts arc based on ccitain assumptions and describe future plans, strategies, and expectations of  Fauyuier Bankshares (“Bankshares”), and 
are generally identiliable by use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project” “may,” “will” or similar cxprcssions. 
Although we believe our plans, intcntions and expectations rcflcctcd in thcsc forward-looking stiitements are reasonable, we can give n o  assurance 
that these plans, intentions, or expectations will be achieved. Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or stratcgics is inhcrcntly 
unccrtain, and actual results could diffcr materially from thosc contemplated. Factors that could have a material adverse effect on our operations and 
future prospects include, hut are not limited to, changes in: interest rates, general econoniic conditions, the legislativehegulatory climate, monetary and 
fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policics of thc U.S. Treasury and thc Board of Governors of the Federal Keserve System, the quality or 
composition of The Fauquier Bank’s (“TFB’s”) loan or investinen1 portfolios, demand for loan products, deposit flows, competition, dem,md for financial 
services in our market area and accounting principles, policics and guidclines. Thesc risks and unccrtaintics should be considered in eviilu:iting forward- 
looking statements in  this report, and you should not place undue reliance on  such statements, which reflect our position as of the date of this report. 1 

I CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

GENERAL. Bankshares’ linancial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). 
The financial information contained within our statcmcnts is, to a significant cxtcnt, based on measures ofthe financial effects of transactions and events 
that have already occurred. A variety of factors could affect the ultitnate value that is obtained either when earning income, recognizing an expense, 
recovering an asset or relieving a liability. We use historical loss factors as one factor in determining thc inhcrcnt loss that may bc prcscnt in our loan 
portfolio. Actual losses could differ signilicantly from the historical factors that we use in our estimates. In addition, GAAP itself rnay change from 
one previously acceptable accounting rnethod to another method. Although the econorriics of our transactions would bc the same, tlic timing of cvcnts 
that would impact our transactions could change. 

1 Al.1.OWANCE FOR 1,OAN 1,C)SSES. The allowance foi- loan losses is an estimate o f  the losses that may be sustained in our loan portfolio. The al- 
lowance is based on two basic principles of accounting: (i) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 5 “Accounting for Contingcncies,” 
which rcquircs that losscs bc accrued when they are prohable of occurring and estim~hle and ( i i )  SFAS No.  I 14, “Accounting by Creditors for Impair- 
ment of a Loan,” which requires that losses be accrued based on the differences between the value of collatcral. prcscnt valuc of future cash flows or 
values that are ohservable in  the secondary niarket and the loan balance. 

Our allowaiicc for loan losscs has tlircc basic componcnts: tlic spccific allowancc, the formula allowance and the unallocated allowance, F,ach of these 
components is detei-mined based upon eslimates (hat can tuid do chmge when the aclual events occur. 

The specilic allowance is used to individually allocale an allowance for larger balance, non-homogeneous loans. The specific allowance uses various 
techniques to arrive at an cstimatc of loss. First, analysis of the borrowcr’s ovcrall financial condition, resources and payment record, the prospects for 
support from linancial guarantors; arid the fair niarket value of collateral are used to estimate the probability and severity of inherent losses. Addition- 
ally, the migration of historical default rates and loss severities, internal risk ratings, industry and market conditions and trends, and other environmental 
factors are consiclered. The use of these values is inherently subjective and our actual losses could be greater or less than the estirnates. 

The formula allowance is used for estimating the loss on pools of smaller-balance, homogeneous loans; including onc-to-four family mortgage loans, 
installment loans, other consumer loans, and outstanding loan commitments. Also, the formula allowancc is used for the remaining pool of larger hal- 
ance, non-hoiiicigeneous loans which were not allocated a specific allowance upon their review. The Connula allowance begins with estimates of probable 
losscs inhcrcnt in the homogcncous poiTfolio based upon various statistical analyses. These include analysis of historical and pccr group dclinqucncy 
and credit l oss  experience, together with analyses that reflect current trends and conditions. We also corisider trends arid changes i n  the volume arid tenri 
of loans, changcs in  the credit proccss and/or lending policics and procedures, and an cvaluation of ovelall credit qudity. Thc ti)rmula allowancc uses 
a historical loss view as an indicator of future losses. As a result, even though this history is regularly updated with the most recent loss information, it 
could differ from the loss incurred in the future. 

The unallocated allowance captures losses that ai-e attribulahle to  various economic events, industry or geographic sectors whose impact on  the portfolio 
have occurred but have yet to be recognized in either the formula or specific allowances. In addition, an unallocated rcserve is maintained to recognize 
the imprecision in  estimating and measuring inherent losses on individual loans or pools of 1o:tns. 

IN1‘KOI)UC‘I’ION 

TFR’s general market arca principally includcs Fauquicr County, wcstcrn Prince William County, and ncighboring communities and is located approxj- 
rnately fifty (SO) miles southwest of Washington, D.C. 

TFB provides a range of con~umcr and commcrcial banking scrvices to individuals, businesses and industrics. Thc dcposits of TFB are insured up to 
applicable liinits by the Bank Insurance Fund ofthe Federal Deposit Insurance Fund. The basic services offered by “43 include: demand interest hearing 
and noli-interest bearing accounts, money market deposit accounts, NOW accounts, tirile deposits, safe deposit services, credit cards, cash management, 
direct deposits, notary services, money orders, night depositoi-y, ti-aveler’s checks, cashier’s checks, domestic collections, savings honds, hank drafts, 
automated teller services, drive-in tellers, internet banking, and banking by mail. In addition, TFB makes secured and unsecured commercial and real 

nd-by letters o f  credit and gi-;ints availahle credit foi- installment, unsecured and secured persoixtl loans, residential mortgages and 
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home equity loans, as well as automobile and other types of consumer financing. TFB providcs automated teller rnachinc (“ATM’) cards, as a part of 
the Star and Plus ATM networks, thereby permitling customers to utilize the convcnience of larger ATM networks. 

TFB operatcs a Wealth Management Scrvices division (“WMS”) that began with the granting of tnist powcrs to TFB in 1919. The WMS division pro- 
vides pcrsonalized scrvices that include investment managcment, trust, cstate settlement. retirement, insurance, and brokerage scrvices. TFB through 
its subsidiary Fauquier Bank Services, Inc. has equity ownership interests in Bankcrs Insurancc, LLC, a Virginia independent insurance company, and 
Bankers Investments Group, LLC, a full service brokeddealer. Bankers insurance consists of a consortiuiii of 56 Virginia community bank owners and 
Bmkcrs Investmcnts Group is owned by 28 Virginia community banks. 

The rcvenues of TFB are primarily derived from interest on, and fees rcceived in connection with, real eslate and other loans, and from interest and 
dividends from investmcnt and mortgage-backed sccurities, and short-term invcstrrienls. The principal sources oC funds for ‘WB’s lcnding activities 
are its deposits, repayment of  loans, the salc and maturity of investmcnt securities, and borrowings from the Pcderal Homc Loan Bank (“FHLB”) of 
Atlanta. The principal expenses of TFB are the interest paid on deposits and operaling and general administrativc cxpenses. 

As is the case with banking institutions gcnerally, TFR’s operations are materially and significantly iiifluenccd by general cconornic conditions and 
by related monetary and fiscal policies of financial institution rcgulatory agcncies, including the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systcm 
(“Fedcral Reservc”). As a Virginia-chartered bank and B mcmber of thc Federal Reservc, TFB is supervised and examined by thc Federal Rcscrve and 
thc Virginia State Corporation Commission . Interest rates on compcting investmcnts arid gencral market ratcs of interest influence deposit flows :+nd 
costs of funds. Lending activilies arc affecled hy the demand for financing of real estate and other types of loans, which in turn is affccted by the interest 
ratcs at which such financing may be oFfcred arid othcr factors affecting local dcniand and availability ol‘ funds. TI% faccs strong competition in thc 
uttraction of deposits (its primary source o f  lendable funds) and in the origination ol‘ loans. 

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 

This discussion is intended to focus on ccrtain financial information rcgarding Rankshares and TFB and may not conlain all the information that is 
imporlant to the reader. The purposc of this discussion is tu provide the rcader with B more thorough understanding of our financial statements. As 
such, this discussion should he read carefully in conjunction with the consolidated financial statcrnents and accompanying notes conlaincd elsewhere 
in this report. 

Through merger and consolidation, TFR has becomc the primary independent comrnuiiily bank in its immcdiate market area. It continually seeks to be 
the primary financial service provider for its market area by providing the right mix of high quality customer scrvice, efficicnt technological suppoit, 
value-added products, and a strong commitment to the community. 

Net income of $4.3 inillion in 2003 was a 10% increase from 2002 net income of  $3.9 million. Hankshares and TPB expel-ienccd growth across all ol‘ 
its primary operating busincsscs, with growth in commcrcial and retail lending, dcposit accuunts and core dcposits, and asscts under WMS maiiagemcnt. 
During 2003, TFB modified its loan pricing strategies and expanded its loan product offcrings in an cffort to increase lending activity without sacrific- 
ing the exisling credit quality standards. The result ofthis was a 38% increase in nct loaii outstandings in 2003. Deposits increased 17% from year-end 
2002 to ycar-end 2003, with 1FB gaining in-market cuslomcrs who grew dissatisfied with the servicc and pricing resulting from the consolidation of 
othcr local community banks into larger, out-of-market financial institutions. Assets uncler managcment grew by $48 million to $2 19 million, or 28%). 
from 2002, with revenue increasing tYom $694,000 to $936,000, or 34.7%, ;is management focused inorc pcople, markcting, and othcr resources toward 
its WMS business. 

Net intcrest incomc is the laigcst component of net incomc, and equds the difl‘erencc between income genelatcd on inteiest-carning assets and interest 
cxpense incurred o n  intercst-beat-ing liabilities. Future trends rcgarcling net interest income are dependcnt on  he absolute level of market intcrest rates, 
the shape of the yield curvc, the amount of lost income ftom non-perftii-ming assets, thc amount o f  prcpayiiig loans, the mix and amount of various 
deposit types, and many other factors, Lis well as the ovcrall volume of interest-earning assels. Thcse factors arc individually difficult to predict, and 
when taken together, the uncertainty of future trends coinpounds. Based on management’s current pro.jcctioiis, net interest inconic may incrcasc in 
2004 and beyond BS avcrage intevcst-earning assets increasc. but this may be ol‘l‘sel in part or in whole by a possible contraction in “I’FB’s net interest 
margin resulting from competitive markct conditions. Addi1ion:illy. TFB’s halancc sheel is positioiied for a stable 01- rising iiiterest ratc environmcnt. 
This means that net intcrcst is pi-0-jcctcd to incrcase if rnai-ket interest rates risc. arid to decrease i f  markct interest ratcs fall. ‘I’he spccific mturc of TFB’s 
variability in net intcrest incomc due to changes i n  intcrcst rates, also known ;is intcrest rate risk, is to ;I largc degree the rcsult of TFR’s deposit base 
structure. During 2003, dcrnaiid deposits, NOW, and savings dcposits avcragecl 21 %, IS%), and 14%) of total averagc deposits, rcspectively, while the 
mwc interest-rate sensitive time certilicatcs of deposit averaged 27%) of total avcrage deposits. 

TFB continues to have strong credit quality as evidenced by noli-pcrforming loans totaling $967,1300 or @.338 or total loans at ikccmber 3 1 I 21103, as 
comparcd with $8SO.000, or 0.39%~ of total loans at Ileccmber 3 I 2002. The pinvision for 1o:in losses was $784,000 for 2003 cotnparcd with $346,000 
for 2002. The 126.6% increase in the provision for loaii losscs frorii 2002 to 2003 was largely in  response to the growth in new loan originations during 
2003, and, to a lcsscr extent, the continued uncerlainty cxisting in thc cconomic atid geopolitical environment. 

Mmagcment continucs the expansion of its branch network into southcrn Fauquier County with a new bnmcli scheduled to open iii Bealeton, Virginia 
during the first half of 2004. Additionally, TFB looks to add to its branch network in western Prince William County. TFB is looking toward thesc new 
retail markcts for growth in deposits and WMS inconie. Managenienl a l s ~  sceks to incrcase the levcl of its fee incomc froiii deposits aiid WMS through 
thc increase of its tnarket sliarc within its marketplacc. 



The following table presents a quarterly summary of eariiirigs for thc last two years. In 2003, carnings exhibited 
an increasing profitability from recurring sourccs when compared with thc same quarter from thc prior year, primarily the result of the steady atid con- 
tinuous growth in net interest iricomc and fees on deposits. 

EARNINGS 
(In Thousands) 

Interest income 
Interest expensc 
Net interest income 
Provision tor loan losses 
Net intcrcst income arter 

Other income 
Other cxpenhe 
Income hefore income taxcs 
Income tax expense 
Net Incomc 

provision for loan losses 

Ne l  income per sharc, basic 

Net income per sharc. diluted 

Three Months Elided 2003 

Dec. 31 Scp. 30 .lune 30 Mar. 31 
$ 5,160 $ 4,766 $ 4,619 $ 4,591 

994 956 1,030 I $12 I 
4,166 3,810 3,589 3,570 

314 240 I55 75 

3,852 3,570 3,434 3,495 
1,227 1,492 1,215 1,134 
3,546 3,334 3,300 3,082 
1,533 1.728 1,349 1,547 

440 522 403 456 
$ 1,093 $ 1,206 5 946 $ 1,091 

$ 0.33 $ 0.36 $ 0.28 $ 0.33 

$ 0.31 $ 0.34 $ 0.27 $ 0.32 

Three Months Ended 2002 

Dec. 31 Sep. 30 June 30 Mar. 31 
$ 4,951 $ 4,888 $ 4,954 $ 4,703 

1,128 1,264 1,358 1,332 
3,823 3,624 3,596 3,371 

93 65 94 94 

3,730 3,559 3,502 3,277 
1,096 999 877 92x 
3,385 3,054 2,963 2,895 
1,441 1,504 1,416 1.310 

426 473 444 398 
$ 1,015 $ 1,031 $ 972 $ 912 

$ 0.31 5 0.31 $ 0.29 $ 0.27 

$ 0.29 $ 0.30 $ 0.28 $ 0,27 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

2003 compared tu 2002 

Net income of $4.3 million in 2003 was a 10.3% itlolease from 2002 net iiicomc of$3.9 ridlion. Earnings 1x1- share on a fully dilutcti basis were $1.24 
in  2003 comp;ircd to $ 1 .  I 4  in  2002. Profitability tis measured by return on average equity increased from 15.7% in 2002 to 15.8% in 2003. Profitability 
as measured by return on avcragc assets decreased froin 1.29%~ in 2002 to 1.24% in 2003. 

2002 compared to 2001 

Net income of $3.9 million in 2002 was a 11.8% increase from 2001 net income of $3.5 million. Earnings per share on a fully dilutcd basis wei-e $1.14 
in 2002 compared to $1.01 in 200 I .  Prnlitability as mcasurcd hy I-eturn on average equity increased frorn 14.7% in 200 I to 15.7% in 2002. Profitability 
as rrieasurcd by return on  average assets increased from 1.28% in 2001 to I .29% in  2002. 

On January 29, 200 I ,  ‘I’FB recovered $358.000, ne1 of [axes,  or $0.10 per diluted share, from its insurance can-ier for losses associated with i+ misnp- 
propriatioil o f  cash. Certain cxpciises associated with that iiiisiipprUpi-iati(jn of cash rcduccd 2000 and I999 earnings by $86,000 arid $288,000, iict o f  
tax, respectively. 

On December 6,2001, carnings were reduced by $378,000 net of tax henelit, or $0.1 1 pcr dilutcd share, due to an extraordinary expense associated with 
the early payofl‘of the FHLB of Atlanta advances. The restructuring o f  TFR’s h a l m x  sheet through the early payorf of the FHLB of Atlanta hoi-rowings 
rrsulled from the grcatc~-tlian-anlicipated siicccss ofTFB’s i-etail deposit retention campaign. Deposits grew by $3 I .h million, o r  14.997, from Deccmhcr 
31, 2000 to December 3 1. 2001. The henelit of this restructuring strategy, in  addition to iricrcasing TFB’s llexibility in its asscthahility inimagemerit 
process, iticludcd the reduction of intcrcst cxpcnse during 2002 arid bcyond. The ~-ealized aiicl anticipated reduction in  interest expensc is projccted lo 
mol-e than offset the onc-time extraordinary expensc of tlic cai-ly payoff. 
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NET INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 

2003 compared tu 2002 

Net interest income for 2003 increased $721,000 or S,O% to $15. 1 million for the ycar ended December 31,2003 from $14.4 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. This incrcasc resulted from an increase in total average earning assets from $279.5 rnillion in 2002 to $320.8 million in 2003, 
partially offset by a 44 basis point decrease in the net interest margin, The pcrcentagc of avcragc earning assets to total asscts decreased in 2003 to 
9 1.6% froni 92.0% in 2002. TFB's net interest margin decreased from 5.24% in 2002 to 4.80% in  2003. 

Total intcrcst income decreased $360,000 or 1.8% to $19.1 million in 2003 from $19.5 million in 2002. This decrease was due to the decrease in yield on 
interest-earning asscts resulting from the declining market interest rates. Average loxi balances increased from $2 15.7 millicin in 2002 to $253.4 million 
in 2003. The average yield on loans decreased to 6.86% in 2003 comparcd with 8.05%) in 2002. Together, there was a $30,000 decrease in interest and 
fee income from loans for the year 2003 cornpared with year 2002. Average investmcnt sccurity balanccs incrcascd $11.5 million from $51.1 million 
in 2002 to $62.7 million in 2009, primarily due to the exccss liquidity gcncrated from retail deposit growth in 2002 and 2003. The tax-equivalent aver- 
age yield on invcstmcnts declined from 4.21%) in 2002 to 3.12'% in 2003. Together, there was B decrease in intei-est and dividend income on security 
investments of $180,000 or 8.6%, from $2. I million in 2002 to  $1.9 million in 2003. Avcragc fcdcral funds sold balanccs decreased $8.0 million from 
$12.5 million in 2002 to $4.5 million in 2003. The avcragc yicld on fcderal funds sold declined from 1.58% in 2002 to 1.08% in 2003. Together, there 
was a $148.000 decrcasc in federal funds sold income frorn 2002 to 2003. 

Total intcrcst cxpensc decreased $1.1 million or 2 1.3% from 2002 to 2001 primarily due to thc dccrcasc in cost on interest-bearing deposits also resulting 
from the declining market interest rates. Avcragc deposit balances grew $38.7 million, primarily in demand deposits, time certilicates of deposit, and 
money market accounts. The average rate on interest-hearing liabilities dccrcascd from 2.25%1 in 2002 to 156%~ in 2003. The average rate on certificates 
of deposit decreased from 3.81%~ in 2002 to 2.66% in 2003. Interest expense on  FHLB of Atlanta advances increascd $15.000 from 2002 to 2003 due 
to the $1.1 million increase in average FHLB advances. 

2002 compared to 2001 

Total intercst income decreased $289,000 or 1 .S% to $19.5 million in 2002 from $ I9,8 million in 2001. This dccrcasc was primarily due to the decrease 
in yield on interest-earning assets resulting from the dcclining market interest rates. Average loan balances increased from $208.8 million in 2001 to 
$215.7 million in 2002. The average yield on loans decreased to 8.05% in 2002 compucd with 8.51% in 2001. Together, there was a $394,000 decrease 
in interest and fee income from loans for thc ycar 2002 compared with year 2001 on a tax equivalent b Average investment security balaticcs 
increascd $24.3 million from $26.9 million in 2001 to $5 I .  1 million in 2002, primarily due to the cxcess li ity generated from retail deposit growth. 
The lax-equivalent average yicld on investments declined from 5.84% in 200 I to 4.2 I %, in 2002. Together, thcrc was an increase in tax equivalent 
interest and dividend income on security investments o f  $585,000 or 37.396, from $1.6 million in 2001 to $2.2 million in 2002. Average fedcral funds 
sold halances decreased $6.3 million from $ million in 2001 to $1 2.5 million in 2002. The average yicld on fcdcral funds sold declined from 3.59% 
in 2001 to 1.58%) in 2002. Together, there w $479,000 decrease in fcdcral funds sold income from 2001 to 2002. 

Total intcrcst cxpensc dccreased $2.1 rnillion or 29.6% from 200 I to 2002 primarily duc to the decrease in cost on interest-bearing deposits also resulting 
from the declining rriarket interest rates. Averagc deposit balances grew $30.3 million, primxily in demand deposits and moncy tnarkct accounts. The 
average rate on interest-bearing liabilities decreased from 3.54% in 200 I tu 2.25% in 2002. The average rate on certificates of deposit decreased from 
5.57% in 2001 to 3.8 1 %  in 2002. Interest cxpcnsc on FHLB of Atlanta advances decreased $2S2,000 from 200 I to 2002 due to thc early repayment of 
advances in December 2001. 

Net interest income increased $ I  .8 million or 14.7% to $14.4 million for the year ended December 3 I, 2002 li-om $12.6 million for the ycar ended De- 
cember 3 l ,  2001. This increase resulted from an increase in total average casning assets from $254.6 million in 2001 to $279.5 million in 2002, and a 
22 basis point improvement in the net interest margin. Thc percentage of average earning assets to total Hssets decreased in 2002 to 92.0%~ from 93.0%) 
in 2001. TFB's net intcrcst margin increased from 5.02% in 2001 to 5.24% in 2002. 

The following table sets forth infoimation relating to Rankshares' average balance sheet and reflects the average yield on asscts and average cost of li- 
abilities and the avei-age yields and ratcs paid for each of the years ended December 3 I ,  2003, and 2002, and 2001.2. The yields and costs are derived 
by dividing income or expense by the average daily balanccs of assets and liabilities, respectively, for the pel-iods presented, 
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AVERAGE BALANCES, INCOME AND EXPENSES, AND AVERAGE YIELDS AND RATES 

ASSETS: 
Loan> 
Taxable 
Tax-exempt ! 1 I 
Nonaccrual 

Total Loans 

12 Months Ending December 3 1,2003 
Average 
Balances 

$133,975 
8.494 

962 
253,431 

Securities and interest-bearing deposits 
Taxable 61.154 
Tax-exempt i l )  1.503 

62.657 Total securities and interest-bearing deposits 

Deposits in banks 
Federal funds sold 

Total earning asqets 

183 
1.502 

320.773 

Less: Reserve for loan losses 461 
Cash and due from banks 16.092 

7.192 
Othei- assets 8.896 

Total Assets $350.106 

Bank premises and equipmenr. net 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Deposit 
Demand deposits $63.637 

Interest-bearing deposits 
NOW accounts 
Money market accounrs 
Sayings accounts 

53.296 
61.388 
40.439 

Time depositr 78.70 1 
Total interest-bearing deposits 233.811 

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under 

Federal Home Loan Bank adyances 
Capital securities of subsidiary trust 

Total interest-bearing lidbilitiei 

agreements to repurchase 2.862 
16.069 
4.000 

2 5 6.7 4 4 

Other liabilities 
Shareholders' equity 

7 747 
27.369 

Total Liabilities & Shareholders' Equity 5350.106 

Net interest spread 

Interest expense as a percent ofakerage earning assets 
Net interest margin (21 

Income: 
E Y p e n s e 

$16.723 
676 

0 
17.398 

1.851 
101 

1.952 

7 - 
19 

19.301 

123 
633 
196 

2.093 
3.0-17 

39 
72 1 
195 

4.001 

Avemge 
Rate 

6.85% 
7.964 

6.87% 

3.03% 
6.759 
3.124 

1.079 
1.084 
6.054; 

0.23% 
1.03% 
0.48% 
2.66% 
1.308 

1.354 
4.489 
3.87% 
1.56% 

$15.400 4.494 

1.25% 
4.809 

(In Thousands] 

12 Months Ending December 3 1,2002 
A\ erage 
Balances 

S208.622 
6.128 

993 
215,743 

48.768 
2.363 

51.132 

173 
12,189 

779.538 

(2.957) 
16.563 
6.532 
4.258 

$303 934 

Income : 
Expense 

$ 16.863 
509 

0 
17.372 

1.990 
164 

2.154 

3 
197 

19.726 

Ayerage 
Rate 

8.08Sr. 
8 .308 

8.05%, 

4.08% 
6.94% 
4.21% 

1.72% 
1.58% 
7.06% 

S51.016 

46.403 

37.833 
70.179 

207.763 

53.318 
165 0.36% 
932 1.75% 
439 116% 

2.67 1 
1,207 

3.81% 
2.028 

15.000 
3,080 

225,843 

2.112 
24,964 

$303,933 

705 4.70% 
1 70 

5.082 
5.52% 
2.25% 

$14.644 4.818 

1.82% 
5.24% 

Average 
Balances 

5203.854 
1.969 

980 
208.804 

23.569 
3.288 

26.857 

91 
18.839 

254.590 

(2.778) 

5.621 
11,917 

3.355 

$273.705 

12 Months Ending December 3 1.2001 
Income' Average 
Espens e Rate 

S1?.330 8.54%. 
136 8.777i. 

0 
17.766 8.51% 

$43,628 

39.980 
36.307 
32.137 
76.469 

184.893 

18.874 

203.767 

2,435 
23,865 

$273,705 

1.334 5.66% 
235 

I .569 
7.13% 
5.84% 

3 3.16% 
676 3.59% 

20,011 7.86% 

262 0 66% 
1.050 2 89% 

696 2 16% 
4.256 
6.262 

5 57% 
2.398 

957 5.078 

7,220 3.548 

$12,794 4 3 2 9  

2.84% 
5.03% 

! 11 Income aod rates on tas exempt assets are computed on a tax equivalent basis using a federal tax rate of 344 
(?j  Net interest spread divided by total earning assets. - 
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RATENOLUME ANALYSIS 
The following table sets forth certain inforrriation regarding changcs in interesl incnnie arid interest cxpcnsc of Banksh:tres for the periods indicatcd. 
For each category of intcrcst-carning asset and interest-bearing liability, information is provided on  changes attributablc to changcs in volume (change 
in volume midliplied by old rate); and changcs in rites (change in rate inultiplied by old volumc). Changes in rale-volume, which cannot bc scparately 
identified, are allocatcd proportionately between changes in rate and changcs in volume. 

RATE I VOLUME VARIANCE 
(In Thousands) 

2003 Coruparcd to 2002 2002 Compared t o  200 I 

Loans; taxablc 
Loans; tdX-CXCmpl ( I ) 
Sccuritics; taxable 
Sccuritics; tax-exempl ( I ) 
Deposils in banks 
Federal Cuncls sold 

Total interest incortie 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
NOW accounts 
Money market accounts 
Savings accounts 
‘l’irne deposits 
Federal funds purchased and securities 

sold under agreements to repurchase 
Federal Home Loan Bank advanccs 
Capital securities of subsidiary trust 

Total intcrcst cxpcnsc 
Net Iriterest Incornc 

Change 

(41) 
(298) 
(241) 

(57X) 

39 

nuc  to Due to 

Volulllc Kate 

25 (66) 
141 (438) 
3 0 (273) 

324 (902) 
39 

50 (35) 
51 (26) 

659 (1,741) 
$2,7 15 $( 1,958) 

Change 

$(467) 
73 

656 

(71) 

(479) 

(288) 

(97) 
( 1  17) 
(2%) 

( 1,585) 

(252) 

I70 
(2,137) 
$ 1  ,849 

Due to 
Vvlume 

$493 
I02 

1,426 

(66) 
3 

(228) 
1,729 

42 
493 
I23 

(350) 

( 196) 
170 
28 1 

$1,448 

Due to 
Kate 

(2,O 17) 

(139) 

(608) 
(378) 

( 1.235) 

(56)  

( I )  Iricorrie arid rates on tax-cxcmpt assets are cornpuled on a tax equivalent basis using a federal tax fide o f  34% 

ASSET QUALITY AND SUMMARY O F  LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE 

At December 3 I ,  ?003 and 2002, net loans accountcd for 7X.O% and hh.fi%, respectively, of total assets and were (he largesl category of Bankshares’ 
earning assets. Loans arc shown on (he balance sheets riet of unearned discounts and the allowance for Inan losses. Interest is coiiiputcd by methods 
that result in level i-iiles of return on principal. Loans arc charged-off when cleeined by rnaiiagenient to bc uncollcctablc, after taking inlo consideration 
such factors as thc current linancial condilioii of the custorner and thc underlying collateral :ind guar:tnlees. 

Banksharcs adoptcd FASB Stakrrietit Nn. 114, “Accounting by Crcditors for Impaii-inen1 o f  ;t Loan.” This Statement has bccn amcndcd by FASH Slale- 
ment No .  I 18, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment o f  a LONI - lricoiiie Recognition and Disclosures.” FASB Staleinen1 No. I 14, as arnendcd, 
rcquircs that the irnp;iirnieiil of loans that have been scparatcly idcntificd for evaluation is lo be inensured bascd 011 thc prcscnt value of expected future 
cash flows or, alternativcly. the observable ixtrkel price of the loans or the fair value o f  thc collntel-al. However, for those loans that arc collatclal de- 
pendent ((ha1 is, iT  repayrnent of thosc loans is cxpcctcd to be provided solely by the uritlerlyirig col1atcr;il) ;rnd for which managen1enl has deterrriiried 
foreclosurc i s  probable, the measure o f  iillpiiirrtierit is to be bascd on the nct rcalizablc value o f  lhe collateral. FASB Statcmcnt No. 1 14. as amended 
also I-equires certain disclosures about invcstmcnts in imp;iired loails aiitl the allowarice for loan losscs and intei-esl income recognized i)n loans. 

A loan is considcrcd impaired when i l  is probable that TFB will be unable to collcct all principd and interest aillourits according to thc contractual tcrms 
of the lo:iii agreernent. Factors involved in dctcrmining impaii-ment include, but are not liriiitecl to, cxpcctcd future cash Ilows, linancial coiidition of 
ihe borrower, and thc currcnt economic conditions. A perforrniiig loan may be considered impairccd if thc factors above iiidicate a need for impairmcnt. 
A loan on noli-accrual status iiiay not be irripaired if it is in the process of collection 01- i f  the shortfall i i i  payrrient is insignificant. A delay of lcss than 
30  days or  a shortfall of lcss than 5% o f  the requii-ed pi-iiicipd aiicl interest payriients gencrally is considcicd “insigililic~tiil” aiid woulcl not iridicatc an 
impairmcnt situalioii, i f  i i i  iiiaiiageiiient’s judgtnent tlic loan will bc paid in tull .  1 , o a n h  thal meet the regulatory dcfinitions of doubtful or loss genei-ally 
qualify as iriipaired loans undcr FASH StakmenL No.  114. As is the case for all loans, charge-offs for impail-ed loans  occur when the loa11 or portion of 
the lonn is dt-termiiiecl to be uncollectible., as is the case for a l l  luans. 



Bankshares considers all consumer installment loans and residential mortgage loans to bc homogenous loans. These loans are not subject to individual 
impairment under FASB Statement No. 114. 

Loans are placed o n  non-accrual status when they have bccn specifically determined to be impaired or when principal or intcrcst i s  delinquent for 90 
days or more, unless the loans are well secured and in tlie process of collection. Any unpaid interest previously accrued on such loans is rcvcrsed 
from income. Interest income gcncrally is not recognized on  specilic impaired loans unless the likelihood of further loss is remote. Interest payments 
received on such loans are applied as a rcduction of the loan principal balance. Interest income on other non-accrual loans is recognized only to the 
extent of intcrcst payments received. 

The following tdbk sets forth certain information with respect to TFB’s non-accrual, restructured and past due loans, as well as foreclosed assets, for 
tlie periods indicated: 

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS AND LOANS CONTRACTUALLY PAST DUE 
(In Thousands) 

Years ended Dcccinbcr 3 I ,  
2003 2002 200 1 2000 I999 

Nonaccrual loans 
Restructured loans 
Other real estate owned 
Total non-performing assets 

Loans past duc 90 days 
accruing interest 

Allowance for loan losses to total loans at 
period end 

Non-performing assets lo period end 
loans and other real estate owned 

$967 $850 $913 $121 $125 

$967 $850 $913 $121 $125 

$840 $244 $541 $800 $170 

I .20% I34Y0 1.36% 1.27% 1.24% 

0.3 3 %i 0.39%1 0.43% 0.06% 0.07% 

Potential Problcm Loans: At Dcccinber 3 I ,  2003, Management is not  aware of any significant problern loans riot included in table. 

The allowance foi- loan losses is maintairied at a level which, in management’s judgment, is adequate to absorb crcdit losses inherent in the loan portfolio. 
The amount of the allowance is bascd on managcmcnt’s evaluation of the collcctibility of the loan portfolio, credit concentration, trends in historical 
loss expel-ience, specilic impaired loans, arid current economic conditions. Management periodically rcvicws the loan poitfolio to determine probable 
crcdit losses rclatcd to spccitically identitied loans as well as credit losses inherent in the remainder of the loan portfolio. Allowances for impaired loans 
are generally determined based on collatcral valucs or the prcscnt valuc of cstiinatcd cash Rows. The allowance is increased by a provision for loan 
losses, which is charged to expense and reduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Changes in the allowanccs rclating to impaircd loans arc charged or 
crcditcd to the provision for loan losses. Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, rrianagement’s estimate of credit losses inhercnt 
in the loan portfolio and the related allowance remains subject to change. 

Additions to the allowance for loan losses, recorded as the provision for loan losses on Bankshares’ statcnicnts of income, iirc niadc monthly to maintain 
the allowance at an appropriate level based on managcmcnt’s analysis of thc inhcrcnt risk in thc loan portfolio. The amount of the provision is 8 func- 
tion of thc lcvcl of loans outstanding, the level of non-performing loans, historical lo:+n-loss expel-ience, the amount of loan losses actually charged off 
or recovered during a given period and current national and local economic conditions. 

At December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000, and 1999 the allowance for loan lOS5CS was $9,575,000, $2,9 10,000, $2,857,000, $2,554,000, m d  $2,284,000, 
respectively. 

NON-INTEREST INCOME 

2003 compared to 2002 

Total non-interest income increased by $ I .  I million from $3.9 rnilliori i n  2002 to $5.0 rnillion in 2003. Nominterestother incorne is derived prirriarily 
from noli-intcrcst fcc income, which consists primarily o f  fiduciary and othcr WMS fccs, scrvjcc charges on deposit accounts, and othcr fcc incomc. 
This increase stemmed priniarily frorri the net gain on sale of securities, as well as rrorrl revenues related to the continued growth of “43’s  deposit base 
and rctail banking activities, the incrcasc of cstatc fees within TFI3’s WMS, a n d  income gcncratcd from thc purchase of hank-owned life insurance 
(“BOLI”). WMS income increased $241,000 or 34.7% from 2002 to 2003. Service charges on deposit accounts increased $342,000, or 16.0% to $2.5 
million foi- 2003, compai-ed with $2. I million for 2002. The major factor i n  the increase in service charges on deposit accounts WBS the impact of TFB’s 
average dcmand deposit basc increasing 24.8%) from $5 I .O million during 2002 to $63.6 million during 2003. Othcr scrvicc chargcs. comniissions 
and fees increased 36.4% from $1 .O rriilliori in 2002 to $1.3 rnillion prirriarily due to $212,000 of income from the February 2X, 2003 purchase of $5 
million of BOLI policies on ccitain key executives, as well as increased income from VISA check card tux. Gains on securities, avirilablc for sale was 
$24X,000 for 2003, the result of selling SI0 rnillion of available-for-sale government agency arid corporate securities, whose weighted-average rerriain- 
ing maturity was approximatcly onc yeai; for a gain o n  sale of $288,000, and rcinvcsting the procccds li-om the sale into available-for-sale govcrnincnt 
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agency sccurities with a weightcd-avcrage remaining maturity of approximately four years. This was par-&ially offset by a loss on the sale of a $5 million 
investment in a short-tcrm mortgage-hackcd security bond mutual fund. 

Management seeks to increase the level of i ts  future fee income from wealth management scrvices arid deposits through the increase OF its market share 
within its marketplace. Wealth management fees we not projected to continue to grow at a 35% annual pace as it did in  2003, but are projected to  sta- 
bilize during 2004 and show more modcratc growth over the longer tcrrn. Fees from deposits are projected to grow approximately in conccrt with the 
growth in demand deposit balances, ancl as result, arc cxpectecl to be somewhat less than 2003’s annual growth of 16%. lncomc from BOLl will he lcss 
in 2004 than 2003 due to the effect of thc decline in market intcrcst rates over (he last two years on the crediting ratc on the instil-ancc, Management is 
not projccting any gains on the sale of securilies at this time. 

2002 cumpared to 2001 

Tuhl non-interest income incrcascd by $64,000 from $3.8 million in 200 1 to $3.9 million iii 2002. Excluding the previously discussed nori-loan chasgc- 
off insurance recovery of $542,000 heforc taxes during 200 I ,  total non-interest other iincorne increased hy $607,000, or 18.4% OthcrNon-interest 
income i s  derived primarily from noli-interest fee incomc is derived primarily from , which consists primarily of liduciary andincome olher which 
consists primwily of fiduciary ancl other WMS fees, sei-vice chagcs on deposit accounts, arid other fee incomc. In 2002, the incrcasc was generated 
primasily from a $420,000 incrcase in service chagcs on deposit accounts. Major factors in thc increase in sei-vice charges on deposit accounts were 
the impact of the 12.3% inci-ease in TPB’s deposit From ycar-end 2001 to year-cnd 2002, as well BS management’s focus on incctiiig the needs of i t s  
customcrs with new value-added, fee-based products. 

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE 

2003 compared tu 2002 

Total non-intcrcst expense increased $925,000, or 7.5%J in 2003 froiil 2002. Thc primary componcnt of this was an incrcasc in salaries a id  employees' 
bcncfits of $637,000, or  lO.S%, primarily duc to the increase in full-time equivalent pcrsonriel from approximately 114 at year-cnd 2001 arid I I9 at 
year-end 2002 to 128 at year-end 2003, as well as customary annual salary increases. ‘I’he growth in persrrnnel primarily reflects the exp;insion of the 
lencling Function. Significant increascs in the clelined-bcncfit pension plan expcnsc and the cost of mcdical insuraiice hcncfits also added to incrcascd 
salary and eniployees’ hencfit expense in  2003. Occupancy expcnscs iricreasecl $ I O6,000, or I4.5%, From 2002 to 2003 primarily clue to rent and 
other leasehold cxpenses associatcd with the full year cffcct of the 2002 addition of finance/accounting offices in Alexandria Pike, Wairenton, as well 
a s  significant growth in snow rcinoval expeusc during early 2003. Furniture and ecluipmcnt increased $ I  27,000 or 12. I%, which corrcsponcl with the 
growth in occupancy cxpenses. 

TFB expects personncl costs, consisting prirnarily of  sdary and benefits, l o  continuc to be its Iiu-gest nominterest other cxpcnse. As such, the most 
important factor with regard to potcntiat changes in  other expenses is thc cxpansion of staff. The cost of any additional staff expansion, however, would 
bc cxpected to he offsct by the iiitreascd revenue generated by thc additional scrviccs that the new staff woulcl eiiitble TFR to pcrform. Diu-ing 2004, 
TFB projects to cxpaiid its personncl base primarily to staff its iiew Ininch in Beatetoii, Virginia. Similarly, occupancy. cquiprnent, markcting, and other 
cxpenses will incrcasc in response to this new branch opcning. 

2002 compared to 2001 I 
Total iioii-interest cxpcnses increased $ I .4 million, 01- 12.4% in 2002 from 2001. The prinlal-y componcnt of the iiici-ease was an iricrease in wlarics and 
employees’ bcncfits of $ I .O million, or 21.3%, pi-imarily due to the inci-casc in full-tiiiir equivalcnt personnel horn ;1pproxirriately I I4 ;it year-end 200 I 
and 104 at year-end 2000 to 119 it1 yeai--cnd 2002, as well as customary annual salary increases. Significant increases in the defined-benefit pcnsion 
plan expense a n d  thc cost of inedical insurance benefits also added to incrcascd salary a id  employces’ belielit expcnsc in 2002. ‘I’he growth in person- 
ncl primarily rellects thc cxpansion ol‘ tlic Wealth Managemcnt Services itnd I .ending divisions, and the frill year errect of thc August 200 I opcning of 
the Old Town-Manassas branch officc. In addition, occupancy expenses increased $140,000, or 23.670, from 200 I to 2002 priiiiai-ily duc to rent and 
other Icaseholcl expenses associated w i h  thc full year effect of thc Old Town-Manassas office, BS wcll as the 2002 addition of aclmiiiisti-ativc offices in 
Alexandria Pikc, Warrentoil. Furniture and eqtiipmcnt increased $ I  XX,OOO or 21.8%, which correspoiid with tlic growth iii occuptincy expenses. 

INCOME TAXES I 
Tnconie tax expcnsc increased h y  $80,000 for the ycar cnded December 3 1, 2003 coinpal-cd to the year ended ncccmber 3 I ,  2002. Thc effective l a x  
rates wcrc 29.6% for ?003 and 30.7% foi- 2002. The effective t a x  rate differs rrom thc statutory fedelal incorne tax rate of34qJ due to “43’s investment 
in tax-exeiiipt loans and sccuriries, as wcll as TFB’s B O I J  purchase. 

Income tax expensc increased by $145,000 hi- the ycar cnded Decemhcr 31 , 2002 coiiip:ircd to the yeai- eiidcd ncccrnbrr 3 I ,  200 I . The effective tax 
rates WZIP 30.7%J for 2002 and 31 2%) for 200 I .  The effective tax ratc differs from the statutoi-y fedcral income tax rate of 34%~ clue to TFB’s invest- 
mcnt in tax-exempt loans arid securities. 
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I FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Total assets were $378.5 million at Decemhei- H I ,  2003, it11 incrcasc of 17.7%~ or $57.0 million from $321 .5 million at December 3 1 ,  2002. Balance 
sheet categories rcflecting significant changes included cash and due Ti-om hanks, investment securities, total loans, bank prcmises and equipment, other 
assets, and deposits. Each o f  these categories i s  discussed below. 

I OTHER ASSETS. Other assets increased $6.X million from Dcccinbcr 3 1,2002 to Dcccmber 31,2003. On February 28,2003, TFB purchased $5 million 
of BOLl policics on cci-tain key executives. BOLI is recorded at its cash surrender value, or thc amount that can bc realized. At Deccmber 31, 2003, the 
cash sui-render value of B O I J  was $5,2 12,000, 

CASH AND DlJE FROM BANKS. Cash and due from banks was $ I  1.8 million at Decemher 31, 2003, rellecting a dccrcasc of $8.0 iiiillioii from 
December 3 1,2002. 

INVESTMENT SECURITIES. ‘Ibtal investment securities wcrc $52.4 million at Dcccmber 31,2003, reflecting a decrease of $19.4 rnilliori from $71.7 
million at Ikcembcr 3 I ,  2002. The dccrcasc was the primarily the result of redeploying the proceeds from the pi-epayment of mortgage-backed securities 
into loans. At December 31,2003 and 2002, all investment securities were available for sale. Thc valuation allowancc for thc available for sale portfolio 
had an unrealized gain, net of tax, of$13,000 at December 31, 2003 cornpared with an unrealized gain, ne1 o f  lax, o f  $670,000 :It December 3 I ,  2002. 

LOANS. Total net loan halancc after allowancc for loan losses was $295.3 rriillion at December 3 I ,  2003, which I-epi-esents :ti1 incrcasc of$8 I .6 million 
or 38.2% from $213.7 million at December 3 I ,  2002. The majority of the incrcasc was in 1-4 family rcsidcntial rcal cstatc loans, which increased $42.5 
million from year-ciid 2002 to year-ciid 2003, as well as commercial real estate and construction loans, which increased $19.9 million aiid $10.6 million, 
respectively, over the same time period. TFB’s loans arc madc primarily to customers located within TFB’s primary rnarket area. During 2003, 
modified its loan pricing strategies and expanded its loan product offerings in an effort to iiicrcasc lciidiiig activity without sacrificing the existing credit 
quality slanditi-ds. This was primary reason for thc ycar to year increase in residential arid corrirnercial real estate loans outstanding. Management will 
continuc the same pricing strategies during 2004, but does no1 pi-ojcct to originatc the sitme lcvcl of 1-4 family rcsidcntial real estate loans as in 2003, 
primarily clue to competitive pressures and market interest ratcs. 

BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, NET. Bank preiniscs and cyuipmcnt, net of dcpreciation, increased $1.4 million from $6.5 million at December 
3 I _  2002 to $7.9 million at December 31, 2003. Approximately $1.2 million of the inci-ease was related to thc purchase of land for a branch officc in 
Bealeton, Virginia to be opened in  2004. 

DEPOSITS. For the year ended Deccmhcr 3 I ,  2003. total deposits grew $47.5 million or 17.3% when cornpared with total deposils one year earliei: Non- 
interest-bearing dcposits increased by $13.0 million and interest-bearing deposits increased hy $34.5 million. The growth in TFB’s dcposits during 2003 
were the result of  marly possible factors diflicult to scgrcgatc and quantify, and equally difficult to use as factors for future projections. One factor was 
TFR gaining in-market customcrs who grew dissatisfied with the service and pi-icing iresidling from the consolidation of other local community banks into 
larger, out-of-market linancial institutions. Anothcr factor may have becn the outflow of funds from equity and mutual furid irivestments into hank deposits. 
A third tactor may havc bccn gaining deposits from new loan customers. TFB projects to inci-ease i ts  deposits in 2004 and hcyond through the cxpansion 
of its branch network, as well as by offering value ~ d d e d  dcrnaiid dcposit products, and selective rate premiums 1311 its interest-bearing deposits. 

COMPAN Y-OBI,I(;ATEII MANDATOR11 ,Y REDEEMABLE CAPITAL SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIAIIY rHIIJS‘~ (“C’apital Securities”). O n  March 
26,2002, Bankshares established a subsidiary trusl that issued $4.0 million of capital sccuritics as part of a pooled trust preferred security offering with 
other linancial institutions. Rankshnrcs is using the offering proceeds for the purposes ofexpmsion and the repurchase of additionnl sharcs of its common 
stock. IJndcr applicablc rcgulatory guidelines, the capital sectu-ilies are ti-eated as Tiel- I capital for purposcs of the Fcdcral Rcserve’s capital guidelines 
for bank holding companies, as long as the capital sccuritics and all other cumulative preferred securities of Bankshares together do not exceed 25% of 
Tier 1 capital. 

C.’ONTKA(:TUAI, OR1 JGATIONS 

The following tablc sets forth information relating to Bankshares’ contractual obligations :ind schcdulcd paymcnt amounts duc at various intervals over 
the next live years and heyond. 

(Tn Thousands) 

Contractual Obligations: 
Long-tcrm debt obligations 
Capital lease obligations 
Operating lease obligations 
Purchase obligations 
Other long-term liabilities 

obligations rcllcctcd 011 

halancc shcct 
Total 

Payments duc pcriod 

Total One Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Ye:lrs 
$24,000 $5,000 $ 10,000 ss,ooo $4,000 * 

709 12s 259 22 1 104 

Less than Morc than 5 

$24,709 $5, I25 $ I0.259 $S,221 $4,104 

* Has varying put provisions beginning March 27, 2007 with a mandatory rcdcmption on March 26. 2032 



OFFBALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

TFB’s off-balance sheet arrangements consist of commitments to cxtcnd crcdit and standby letters of credil, which were $70.2 million and $6.2 million, 
respectively at December 31, 2003, and $42.1 million and $5.0 million, respectively, at December 31, 2002. Sce Note IS “Financial lnslruments with 
Off-Balance-Sheet Risk” to thc 2003 Consolidatcd Financial Statements for further discussion on the specific arrangements and elements of credit and 
interest rate risk inherent to the arrangements. The impact on liquidity of tlicsc arrangcmcnts is illustrated in the “Licluidily Sources and Uses” below 
under the title “I .iquidity.” 

Revenues for standby letters of credit were $55,000 for the year ended December 31,2003. At Dcccmbcr 3 I ,  2003 there were 73 separate standby letters 
of crcdit. During 2003, only one liability, totaling $7S,OOO, arose tYom the standby letters o f  credil arrangements. ‘rhis liability was offset by an insurance 
bond payable to ‘I’FB. Past history gives little indication as to future trends regarding revenues and liabilities froin the standby letters of credit. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Shareholders’ equity totaled $28.5 million at December 31, 2003 compared with $26.4 million at Deccmber 3 I ,  2002. The amount oC equily reflects 
management’s desire to increase shareholders’ return on equity by managing (he growth in equity. During the first quarter of 1998, Bankshares initiated 
a Dutch auction self-tender offer to repurchase shares directly from shareholders. As a rcsult of this action, Bankshares repurchased 120,476 shares, as 
adjusted Cor stock splits, or 3.2% of shares oulslanding on December 31, 1998, for $1.2 million. In addition to the Dutch auction, Bankshares initiated 
an open market buyback program in 1998, through which it repurchased, adjusted for stock splits, an additional 30,000 shares at a cost of $0.3 inillion 
in 1998; 136,426 shares at a cost of $1.3 million in 1999; 126.240 shares at a cost of $ I t  I million in 2000; 77,916 shares at a cost of $0.9 million in 
200 I ; 77,394 shares at a cost oC $ 1 .  I million in  2002: and 2 I ,O I O  shares at a cost of $354,000 in 2003. 

‘The securities portfolio valuation account decreased in its unrealized gain after tax to $13,000 at Dcccmbcr 31, 2003 cornpared from :in unredized 
gain of $670,000 at Deceinher 3 I ,  2002. 

As discusscd above under “Government Supervision and Regulation,” banking regulations have established minimum capital requirements for financial 
institutions, including risk-based capital ratios and leveraged ratios. As discussed above under “Financial Condition,” thc $4.0 million of capital securities 
issued by Bankshares’ subsidiary trust ai-e treated as Tiel- I capital Cor puiposes o C  the Fecleral Reserve’s capital guidelines for bank holding companies, 
as long as the capital securities and all other cumulative preferred securities of Bankshares together do not cxcccd 25% of Tier I capital. 

The primary sources oC funds are deposits, repayment o C  loans, maturities of investments, funds provided from operations and advances from the FHLR 
of Atlanta. While schcdulcd repayments of loans and maturities of invcstmcnt sccurities are predictable sources o f  funds, deposit llows and loan repay- 
ments are greatly influenced by the general level of interest rates, economic conditions and competition. TFR uscs its sources of funds to fund exisling 
and future loan commitments, to fund maturing certificates of  deposit and demand deposil withdrawals, to invest in other interest-earning assets, to 
maintain liquidity, and to meet operating expenses. Management monitors projected liquidity nccds and determines the desirable funding level hased 
in part on TFB’s commitments to make loans and management’s assessment oC1’FB’s ability to generate funds. 

Cash and amounts due from depository institutions, interest-healing deposils in other hanks, and federal funds sold totaled $12.0 million at December 
3 I. 2003 compai-ed with $24.9 million ;+I 13ecemher 3 I ,  2002. These assets provide the primary source of liquidity for TFB. In addition, management 
has designated the entire investment portfolio as available of sale, of which approxi matcly $40.7 million is unplcdged and readily salable. Futheimore, 
TFB has an availahle line ofci-edit with the FHLB oCAtlanla with a borrowing limit of approxirriately $60.4 million at December 31,2003 to provide 
additional sources of liquidity, as well as available fcdcral funds purchascd lincs of credit with various commercial banks totaling approximalely $33.1 
million. At December 31, 2003, $20.0 million of the FHLB of Atlanta line of credit, and $2.0 million of commercial bank fcdcral funds purchased 
were in use. 
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The following tahlc scts forth information relating to Bankshares’ sources of liquidity and tlic outstanding commitmcnts for use of liquidity at December 
31,2003. The liquidity coverage I-atio i s  derived by dividing the total sources of liquidity by the outslanding commitments for usc of liquidity. 

LIQUIDITY SOURCES AND USES 
(In Thousands) 

Sources: 
Federal funds borrowing lines of credit 
Federal Home LOMI Bank advances 
Federal funds sold 
Securities, wailablc for sale and unplcdged 

at tair value 
Total short-term frinding sources 

Uses: 
LJufunded loan commitmncnts and 

lending lines of credit 
Letters of credit 

Total potential shorl-term funding uses 

Ratio of short-term funding sources to 
potential short-term funding uws 

December 3 1,2003 December 3 I ,  2002 
Total In Use Available Total In lJsc Available 

$ 33,077 $ 2,000 $ 31,077 $ 33,077 $ - $ 33,077 
60,540 20,000 40,540 5 1,422 I 5,000 36,422 

703 4,900 

40,655 
112,975 

70,158 
6,192 

$ 76,350 

63,077 
137,476 

42, IO I 
5,o IO 

$ 47,111 

148.0% 291.8%1 

Management is not aware of any market or inslitutional trends, events or uncertainties that are expected to have a material eCfect on the liquidity, capital 
resources or operations of Bankshares or TFB. Nor is managemenl i i w ~ r e  of any current recommendations by regulatory authorities that would have a 
material cffect on liquidity, capital resources or operations. TFB’s internal sourccs of such liquidity arc deposits, loan and investment repayments, and 
securities available for sale. TFR’s primary exlernal source of liquidity is advances from the FHLB of Atlanta. 

IMPACT OF INFLATION ANI) CHANGING PRICES 

The consolidated tinancial statements and tlie accompanying notes presented elsewhere in this document, have been prepared in :tccordance with account- 
ing principles generally acccptcd in the United States of Amei-ica, which requii-e tlic measurement of financial position and operating results in terms 
of historical dollars without considering the change in  tlic relative purchasing power of moncy over time and due to inflation. IJnlikc most industrial 
companies, virtually all tlie assets and liabilities of R:rnkshares and TFR are monetary in nature. The impact of inflation is reflected in the increased 
cost o f  operations. As a result, interesl rates have a greatcr impact o n  our pcrformance than inflation does. Interest rates clo not necessarily move in thc 
same direction or to the same cxtcnt as the pi-ices of goods and services. 

RECENT ACCOUNTIN(; PRONOUNCEMENTS 

For information regarding recent accounting pronouncemenls and thcir effecl on Rankshares, see “Rcccnt Accounting Pronouncements” in Note 1 of 
the Notes to Consolidatcd Pinancial St~temcnts contained Iicrcin. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSUKES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

An important component of both earnings pel-formance arid liquidity is rrianagrmcnt of interest ratc sensitivity, lntcrest rate sensitivity reflects thc 
potential effect on net ititcrest income and economic value of equily from a change in market interest iatcs. TFB is subject to interesl ratc sensitivity to 
the degree that its inlei-est-carning assets mature or reprice at different timc intervals than its interest-bearing liabilities. I lowever, TFH is not subject 
to the other major categories of inarkct risk such as foreign cui-rzncy exchange ratc risk or commodity price risk. 

TFB uses a iimmbcr of tools to manngc its interest ratc risk, including simulaliiig net interest income under various scenarios, monitoring the pi-esent 
value changc in  equity undei- tlic same scenarios, and monitoring the difference or gap belween ratc sensitive assets and rate sensitive liabilitics over 
various time periods. Managcment believes that rate risk is best measured by simulation modcling. 

The earnings simulalioii model forecasts annual net income under a variety of scenarios that incorporate changes in the absolute level o f  intcrcst rates, 
changes in the shapc of the yield curvc, and changes in interest rate relationships. Managemenl evaluatcs the elTect on net interest income and prcscnt 
value equity under varying market rate assumptions. 

TFB inonitors exposure to inrtantmcous changes in rntcs of up to 200 basis points u p  or down over a rolling 12-month perind. TFB’s policy limit for the 
maximum negative impact 011 nct interest incoinc arid ch;mgc in equity 11-om instantaneous changes in interest rates oC 200 basis points over 12 months 
is I S%J arid 20%, rcspcctively. Management has maintained a risk position well within these guidclinc levels during 2003. 
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MARKET RISK 

2003 Pc rceii Cage Market Minus C'urrent Plus Market Percentage 

In Thousands Change Value Change 200 pts Fair Vdue 200 pts Value Change Change 

Federal funds sold 0.00% $ - $  - $  - s  - $  0.00% 

hearing deposits I .97% 1,035 53,563 52,528 49,587 (L94 1) -5.60% 

(1 1,379) -3M% 

Total ratc sensitive awets 2.19% 7,565 753,563 345.998 37 1,678 (14,320) -4.14% 

Securities and interest- 

1,oans reccivable 2.23% 6,530 300,000 293,470 282,091 

Other assets 

Total assets 

0.00% 30,62 I 30,621 30,62 I O.OO%i 

2.01% $7,565 $384,184 $376,6 I9 $367,299 $(14,320) -3.80% 

Demand deposits 18.hl% $ 11,029 $ 70,294 $ 59,265 $ 50,074 $ (9,191) -15.51% 

Kate-bcaring deposits 8.76% 18,597 230,996 212,399 199,222 (13.177) -6.20% 

Borrowed funds 6.42% 1,633 27,069 25,436 25 ,oo 1 (435) -1.71% 

Other liahililies 0.00% 2,869 2,869 2,869 o .oo % 

Total liabilities 10.42%~ 3 1,259 33 1,228 299,969 277,166 (22,803) -7.60% 

Present Value Equity -30.91% (23,694) 52,956 76,650 85,133 8,483 1 I .07% 

Total liabilities and equity 2.01% $ 7,565 384,184 $ 376,619 9; 362,209 $ (14,320) -3.80% 

Percentage Market 2002 PcrcenLage Market Minus C:Llrrent Plus 

In Thousaiids Change Value Change 200 pis Fair Valuc 200 pts Value Chaiige Change 

Fcderal funds sold 

Securities and interest- 
bcaring deposits 

I ~ a t i s  reccivable 

Total rate sensitive assets 

Other assets 

Total assets 

Demand deposits 

Kate-bcaring deposits 

Rorrowed funds 

Other liabilities 

Total liiibilities 

0.00% $ - s  4,900 $ 4,900 $ 4,900 $ 

5.87% 4,226 76,176 7 1,950 67,772 (4,178) 
6.9 1% 14,883 230,279 2 15,396 206,983 (8,4 13) 

6.5474~ 19, IO9 3 I 1,355 292,246 279,655 (12,591) 

0.00% 30,952 30,952 30,952 

5.91% $ 19,109 $ 342,307 $ 323,198 5 310,607 $ (12,591) 

5.53% $ 3,051 $ 58,226 $ 55,175 $ 52,405 $ (2,770) 

3.74%J 7,655 2 12,502 204,847 197,882 (6,965) 

I4 03% 2,856 2x2  I5 20,359 17,902 (2,457) 
0 .oo %, 2,400 2,400 2,4UO 

4.80% 17,562 2 9 6,3 4 7 282,78 I 270,589 (12,192) 

0.00% 

-5.x 1 %i 

-3.91%~ 

-4.3 I (h 
0.00% 

-3.90% 

-5.02SJ 

- 3.40% 

- 12.07% 

0.00% 

-4.3 I 
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TNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S KEPORT 

Yount, Hyde & Barbour, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

and Consultants 

To the Shareholders and Directors of 

Warrenton, Virginia 
Fauquier Hankshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of E'auquier Bankshares, Inc. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years ended December 3 I ,  2003, 2002 and 2001. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of thc Corporation's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unitcd States of 
America. 'Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rcasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, thc consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in sll  material 
respects, the financial position of F a ~ i ~ p ~ i c r  Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 3 1 ,  2003 
and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years cnded December 31,2003, 
2002 and 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the IJnited Ytalcx of 
Amcri c a. 

Winchester, Virgin& 
January 23, 2004 

50 5. Camcrun St. 
P.O. Box 2560 

Winchester, VA 22604 
1540) 662-3417 

Officcs located in: Wirrchcster, Middleburg, kcsburg, and Culpeper, Virginia 
Member: Amcriun Institute of Certified Publir Accuuntants I Virginia Society of Certified FubliL Accountants 
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FAUQUIER BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSTDTATUES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 3 1,2003 and 2002 

Assets 

Cash and due from banks 
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 
Federal funds sold 
Securities, fair value 
Loans, net of allowance for loan losscs of $3,575,002 in 2003 

Bank premises and cyuipment, net 
Accrued intcrcst receivable 
Other assets 

and $2,909,607 in 2002 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

Liabilities 
Deposits: 

Noninleresl-bearing 
Tnterest-bearing 

Total deposits 
Federal funds purchased 
Federal Home Loan Bank <I d vances 
Company-obligatcd mandatorily redeemable capital securities 
Dividcnds payable 
Other liabilities 
Commitments and contingent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Shareholders' Equity 
Colrmon stock, par valuc, $3. I3 per share; 8,000,000 shares authorized; 

Relaincd carnings 
Accurnulated other comprehensive income 

Total shareholders' equity 

issued and outstanding, 2003, 3,3 12,230 shares; 2002, 3,304,066 sharcs 

Total liabilitics and shareholders' equity 

December 31. 
2003 

$ 11,808,387 
142,042 

_ _  

52,386,006 

295,3 11,745 
7,875,424 
1,233,004 
9.703.670 

$ 378,460,278 

$ 73,128,879 
247,999,697 

321,128,576 
2,000,000 

20,000,000 
4,000,000 

430,590 
2,438,327 

2002 

$ 19,824,120 
2 1 2,960 

4,900,000 
71,736,633 

213,697,948 
6,468,205 
1,739,638 
2,919,978 

$ 32 1,499,482 

$ 60,181,808 
2 13,486,663 

273,668,471 
- -  

15,000,000 
4,000,000 

3 63,447 
2,036,399 

- _  
349.997.493 295.068.3 17 

10,367,280 10,341,726 
18,082,684 15,4 19,307 

12,821 670, I32 
28,462,785 26,43 1,165 

!$ 378,460,278 $ 32 1,499,482 

See Notes to Consolidatcd Financial Statements. 
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FAUQUIER BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
For Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 3 1,2003 

2002 2001 2003 
Interest and Dividend Income 

Interest and fkes on loans 
Interest and dividends on securities available for sale: 
Taxable intercst income 
Interest income exempt from federal income taxes 
Dividends 
Interest on fcderal funds sold 
Interest on deposits in other banks 

Total interest and dividend income 

ti; 17,617,424 $ 17,168,004 $ 17,198,498 

1,795,5 I I 
108,218 
194,587 
196,643 

2.571 

1,174,762 
154,816 
159,089 
675,574 

2.864 

1,5763 I3 
66,917 

274,097 
48,533 

1,950 
19.136.3 14 19,784,529 19,496,028 

Interest Expense 
Interest on deposits 
Interest on fedcral funds purchased 
Distribution on capital securities of subsidiary trust 
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advanccs 

Total interest expense 

Net interest income 

4,206,623 6,263,296 3,047,245 
38,524 

194,897 
720,560 

4,00 1,226 

15,135,088 

170,379 
705,160 

5,082,162 

14,413,866 

957.414 
7,220,7 10 

12,563,819 

350.000 Provision for loan losses 784.000 346.250 

14.067.6 I6 12.213.8 I9 Net interest incoinc after provision for loan losses 

Nonintcrest Income 
Wealth management income 
Service charges on deposit accounts 
Other service charges, commissions and fees 
N on-1 o m  charge-off recovery 
Gain on securities available for sale 
Other operating income 

Total noninterest income 

14,35 1,088 

704,68 I 
I ,7 I 1,222 

824,783 
542,320 

935,534 
2,473,16 I 
1,334,490 

694,442 
2, I3 1,445 

978,626 
- -  

33,914 
62,042 

- 3,900,469 

248,240 
36,608 

5,02 8,033 
53,090 

3.836.096 

Noninterest Expenses 
Salaries and employccs' benefits 
Net occupancy expense of premises 
Furniture and equipment 
FHLH prcpayment pcnalty 
Other operating expenses 

Total noninterest cxpenses 

6,52 1,456 
837,734 

1,176,014 

5,884,134 
731,333 

1,049,280 
_ _  

4.63 1.779 

4,85 I ,413 
591,730 
861,427 
572,600 

4.060.530 4,686,758 
13,221,962 

6, I 5 7,159 

10,937,700 

5,112,215 

1,596,78 1 

$ 3,515,434 

$ I .03 

12,296,526 

5,671,559 Income before income taxes 

Incomc tax expensc I ,74 1,743 

3,929,816 

1,821,309 

$ 4,335,850 

% 1.31 

Net incomc 

Earnings per share, basic 

Earnings per share, assuming dilution 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments. 

$ 1.18 
~ 

!l 1.14 $ I .24 !l 1.01 
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FAUQUIER EANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 3 1,2003 

Cash Flows from Operating Activitics 
Nct i ncoinc 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for loan losses 
Deferred tax (benefit) 
(Gain) on sccurities available for sale 
(Gain) on sale of premises and equipment 
Tax benefit of'nonqualified options exercised 
Amortization of security premiums, net 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) in other assets 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 

Net cash provided by opcrating activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from sale of securilics available for sale 
Proceeds froin maturities, calls and principal 

payments of securities available for sale 
Purchase of securities available for sale 
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 
Purchasc of premises and equipinelit 
Purchase of other investment 
Purchasc of Bank Owned Life Insurance 
Net (increase) in loans 

Nct cash (used in) investing activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accounts 

Net increase (decrease) in certificates of deposit 
Proceeds from issiiance of capital securities 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 
Fedcral Home Loan Bank principal repayments 
Purchase of'fcderal hnds 
Cash dividends paid 
Issuance of comnon stock 
Acquisition of conmon stock 

and saving accounts 

Net cash provided by Linancing activities 

Increasc (decreasc) in cash and cash cquiv 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Beginning 

Ending 

$ 4,335,850 

1,047,748 
784,000 

(289,490) 
(248,240) 

(2,645) 
(64,307) 
780.614 

(5 84,646 ) 
40 1,928 

6.160.8 12 

15,44 1,768 

38,898,025 
(36,5 17,466) 

2,645 
(2,454,967) 

(5,000,000) 
(82,397,797) 
(72,027,792) 

- -  

38,702,951 
8,757, I54 

5,000,000 

2,000,000 
(1,520,987) 

295,697 
(354,486) 

52,880,329 

- -  

- -  

dents  (12,986,651) 

24,937,080 

$ 11,950,429 

2002 2001 

$ 3,929,816 $ 3,515,434 

941,787 747,886 
346,250 350,000 

(123,229) (77,080 ) 
(33,9 14) - -  
(7,006) (65) 

( I  7, I 14) - -  
487,583 93,021 

(423,8 16) (223,769) 
57,189 (62,348 ) 

5,157,546 4,343,079 

- -  1,033,650 

22,614,625 
(53,193,487) 

7,006 
(1,074,284) 
(5,066,023) 

(6,591,460) 
(42,269,973) 

28,437,904 
1,483,525 
4,000,000 

- -  
- -  
- -  

( I  ,3 10,949) 
307,520 

(1,050,524) 
31,867,476 

11,960,187 
(3 1,53 1,332) 

65 
(1,826,406) 

- -  
_ -  

(9,923,858) 
(3 1,321,344) 

36,585,184 
(4,94 1.40 1) 

10,000,000 
(8,000,000) 

(1,194,739) 
28,309 

(895,841 ) 
3 1 ,58 1,412 

- -  

- -  

(5,244,95 1) 4,603,147 

30,l 82,03 I 25,578,884 

$ 24,937,080 $ 30,182,031 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemcnts. 
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FAUQUIER BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(Continued) 

For Each of the Three Years in thc Period Ended December 3 I ,  2003 

2003 2002 2001 
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information 

Cash payments for: 
Interest $ 4,026,887 $ 5,220,287 $ 7,371,938 

Income taxes $ 1,044,000 $ 1,709,500 $ 1,872,500 

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing Activities 
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities available for salc, net $ (995,926) $ 671,203 $ 473,759 

Transfer of securities from held to maturity to available for salc $ - -  $ - -  $ 3,980,765 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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FAUQUIER BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity 
For Each of the Three Ycars in the Period Ended Decembcr 3 1,2003 

Accumulated 
Other 

Compre- Compre- 
Retained hcnsive hensive 
Earnings Income (Ims) I ncome 

Common 
Stock Total 

$ 22,41X,039 

3,515,434 

Balance, December 31,2000 
Comprehensivc income: 
Net income 
Other comprchensive incornc net of tax: 

Unrealized holding gains on sccurities 
availahlc for sale, net of deferred incomc 
taxes of $ I6 1,078 

Total comprchensive incomc 
Cash dividends 
Acquisition rd'38,958 shares of 

Issuance of common stock 
Exercisc of stock options 

Balance, December 31,2001 
Comprehcnsive income: 
Net incoinc 
Other comprchensive incomc net of lax: 

Unrealizcd holding gains on securities 

common stock 

availablc for sale, net of deferred income 
taxes of $239,740 

income tax expcnse of %: I 1,53 I 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: 
ToVal comprehensive income 
100%) stock dividend 
Cash dividcnds 
Acquisition of 54,250 shares ol' 

Issuance of common stock 
Exercisc of stock options 

Balance, December 31,2002 
Coinprchensive inconic: 
Net incomc 
Other coinprehensive income net of tax: 

Less rcclassification adjustment, nct of 

common stock 

Unrealized holding losses on securities 
availablc for sale, net ofdeferred income 
taxes of $254,2 I3 

income tax expeiisc of$84,402 
Less reclassification adjustment, net of 

Other comprehensive loss, net or tax: 
Total comprehensive income 
Cash di vidcnds 
Acquisition of21,010 sharcs of 

Excrcise or stock options 
Balance, Decembcr 31,2003 

See Notes to Chsolidated Financial Stateincnts. 

comnion stock 

%: 5,359,158 $ 17,145,324 $ (85,543) 

3 3  15,434 - -  $ 3,515,434 

312,681 
$ 3,828,115 

- -  

312,681 
- -  

(1,222,023) 

(121,938) 
4,150 
3,130 

5,244,500 

(774,003) _ _  

15,409 - "  

5,620 - -  
18,685,761 227,138 

(89594 I )  
19,559 
X,750 

24,157,399 

3,O29,8 16 - -  $ 3,929,816 3,929,X 16 

465.377 _ _  

- -  
- -  

5,185,020 
_ _  

( 1  69,832) 
5,547 

76.491 

(22,383) 
442,994 

$ 4,372,810 

- -  
442.994 

- -  
_ _  

(1,356,040) 

(5,l 8S,02O) - -  
( I  ,356,040) - -  

(880,692) _ -  
37,424 _ _  

188,058 _. 

1 5,419,307 670,132 
~- 

(l,OSO,S24) 
42,97 I 

264,549 
26,43 I ,  165 10,341,726 

4,335,850 $ 4,335.850 4,335,850 

(493,473) .. - -  

- -  - _  
- -  (657,31 I )  

(1,588,130) _. 

(288,725) _ _  

(163,838) 
(657,3 1 1 )  

$ 3,678,539 

- -  
(657,31 I )  

(1,588,130) 

- -  

(6S,761) 
91,315 

$ 10,367,280 

(354,486) 
205,697 

$ 28,462,785 

204,382 .. 

!K 18,082,684 $ 12,821 
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FAUQUTER BANKSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended December 3 1,2003 

Note 1. Nature of Banking Activities and Significant Accounting Policies 

Fauquicr Bankshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Corporation) grant commercial, financial, 
agricultural, residential and consumer loans to customers in Virginia. The loan portfolio is well 
diversitied and generally is collateralized by assets of the customers. The loans are expected to be 
repaid from cash flows or proceeds from the sale of selected assets of the borrowers. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation conforni to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and to the reporting guidelines prescribed by 
regulatory authorities. The following is a description of the more significant of those policies and 
practices. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fauquier Ranksharcs, lnc. and 
its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Fauquier Bank (the Bank), of which Fauquier Bank 
Services, Inc. is its sole subsidiary. Tn consolidation, significant intercompany accounts aiid 
transactions have been eliminated. 

Securities 

Debt securities that management has tlic positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are 
classified as “held to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as 
held to maturity, including equity securities with readily dctermiiiable fair values, are 
classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses 
excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income. 

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the intcrcsl method 
over the terms of the securitics. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available for 
sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are rcflccted in 
earnings as realized losses. Gains and losscs on the sale of securities are rccordcd on the trade 
date aiid are determined using the specific identification method. 

The Rank is required to maintain an investment in the capital stock of certain correspondent 
banks. No readily available niarket exists for this stock and it has no quoted market value. 
The investment in thcsc securities is recorded at cost. 

Loans 

The Corporation grants mortgage, commercial and consunicr loans to customers. A substantial 
portion of the loan portfolio is represented by coinincrcial and residential mortgage loans. The 
ability of the Corporalion’s debtors to honor thcir contracts is dependent upon the real estate 
and general ccoiioiiiic conditions in the Corporalion’s market area. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until 
niaturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances 
adjusted for the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. 
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of 
certain direct origination costs, arc deferred and recognized as an adjustment of thc related 
loan yield using the interest method. 

The accrual of intercst on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at thc time the loan 
is 90 days delinquent unlcss the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. lnstallnicnt 
loans are typically charged off no later than 180 days past due. In all cases, loans are placed 
on rionaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is 
considered doubtful. 

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off is 
reversed against interest incomc. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis 
or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for rcturn to accrual. Loans are rcturned to accrual 
status whcn all tlic principal and interest aniounts contractually due are brought current and 
future payments are reasonably assured. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a 
provision for loan losses chargcd to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance 
when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is continned. Subsequent 
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based 
upon nianagement’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical 
experience, the nature and volumc of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect thc 
borrower’s ability to repay, estiinatcd value of any underlying collateral and prcvailing 
econoniic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are 
susceptible to significant revision as more infomiation becomes available. 

A loan is considered impaired whcn, based on current infotiiialion and cvents, it is probable 
that (he Corporatioii will be unable to collect tlie scheduled payments of principal or interest 
when due according to the contractual t e r m  of the loan agreemcnl. Factors considered by 
managcinent in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the 
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that 
cxperiencc insignificant payment dclays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as 
impaired. Manageincnt determines the signi ticance of payment delays and payment shortfalls 
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circunistances surrounding the loan 
and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s 
prior payment record, and the aniount of lhe shortfall in relation to the principal and interest 
owcd. Impainnent is ineasured on ;I loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans 
by either thc present value of expectcd future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective 
interest rate, thc loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of tlic collateral if the loan is 
collateral dependent. 

Largc groups of smaller balancc homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for iinpairiiicnt . 
Accordingly, the Corporation does not separatcly identiry individual consumer and residential 
loans for impairment disclosures. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Bank Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. 
Premises and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives ranging from 3 - 39 
years; leasehold improvements are amortized over the lives of the respective leases or the 
estimated useful life of the leasehold improvement, whichever is less. Software is amortized 
over its estimated useful life ranging from 3 -- 5 years. Depreciation and amortization are 
recorded on the accelerated and straight-line methods. 

Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Costs of replacing 
structural parts of major units are considered individually and are expensed or capitalized as 
the facts dictate. 

Income Taxes 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the balance sheet method. 
Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects 
of the temporary differences between the book and tax hascs of the various balance sheet 
assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws. 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The Corporation has a pension plan for its employees. Benefits are generally based upon 
years of service and the employees' compensation. The Corporation funds pension costs in 
accordance with the funding provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share represents income available to coinmon shareholders divided by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
per share reflects additional common shares lhat would have been outstanding if dilutive 
potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would 
result from the assumed issuance. Potential coinmon shares that may be issued by the 
Corporation relate solely to outstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury 
method. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

At December 31, 2003, the Corporation has a stock-based compensation plan. The 
Corporation accounts for the plan under the recognition and measurement principles of APR 
Opinion 25, Acrounfingfbr Stork lssued to Employ~es, and related interpretations. No stock- 
based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted under the 
plan had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying coinmon stock on the 
date of the grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per 
share if the Corporation had applied thc fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement 
No. 123, Accounting fbv Stock-Rasm' Cbmpensation, to stock-based compensation. 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 3 I 

Net income, as reported 
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation 

expense determined based on the fair value 
method of awards, net of tax 

Pro forma net income 

Earnings per share: 
Basic - as reported 
Basic - pro forma 
Diluted - as reported 
Diluted - pro forma 

Wealth Management Services Division 

2003 

$ 4,335,xso 

(139.702) 

$ 4.196.148 

$ 1.31 
$ I .26 
$ 1.24 

- 
$ 1.20 

2002 

$ 3,929,816 

1296.042) 
$ 3,633,114 

$ 1.18 

$ 1.10 
$ 1.14 

- 

$ 1 .os 

2001 

$ 3,515,434 

(238.520) 
$ 3,276,914 

s 1.03 

$ 0.96 
$ 1.01 

$ 0.94 

Securities and other property held by the Wealth Management Services Division in a fiduciary 
or agency capacity arc not assets of the Corporation and are not included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, amounts due from banks and federal funds 
sold. Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold for one-day periods. 

Other Real Estate 

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially 
recorded at the lower ofthe loan balance or fair value at the date of foreclosure, establishing a 
new cost basis. Subscquent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by 
management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to 
sell. Revenue and cxpenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance arc 
included in other operating expenses. 

Use of Estimates 

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the 
balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly 
susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance 
for loan losses, and the valuation of foreclosed real estate and deferred tax assets. 
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Statements 

Advertising 

The Corporation follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred. 
Advertising expenses of $183,304, $356,830 and $262,886 were incurred in 2003, 2002 and 
2001, respectively. 

Reclassifications 

Certain reclassilications havc been made to prior period balances to conform to the current 
year presentation. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In December 2002, the Financial Accounling Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 148, “Armunting fbr Stock-Rased 
Cnrnpnsation - Transition and ~isclnsurr~, ” which amends SFAS No. 123 to provide 
alternativc methods of transition for an entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value based 
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The provisions of the 
Statement were effective December 3 1, 2002. Management currently intends to continue to 
account for stock-based coiiipensation under the intrinsic value method set fbrth in 
Accounling Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion 25 a id  related interprelations. For this reason, 
the transition guidance of SFAS No. 148 does not have an impact on the Corporation’s 
consolidated financial position or consolidated results of operations. The Statement docs 
amend existing guidance with respcct to required disclosures, regardless of the method of 
accounting used. The revised disclosure requirements arc presented herein. 

I n  November 2002, the FASB issued FASI3 liiterpretation No. 45, “Gziarantor ’s Accounting 
and Discloszm~ Reyiiirrvncnts fbr  Guaruurtees, Inc-luding Indirwt Guarantew of Indd~trdness 
qf Others ” (“FIN 45”). The Interpretation elaborates on lhc disclosures to be made by a 
guarantor in its financial statements under certain guarantccs that it has issued. It also 
clarifies that a guarantor is required to recogni7e, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability 
for the fair value of the obligation undertakcn in issuing the guarantee. The rccognition 
requirements of the Interpretation were effective beginning January I ,  2003. The initial 
adoption of the Interpretation did not materially affect the Corporation, and management does 
not anticipate that the recognition requirements of this Interpretation will havc a materially 
adverse impact on either the Corporation’s consolidated financial position or consolidated 
results of operations in (he future. 

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASH Interpretation No. 46, “Consnlidufion of Variublc 
Intcws‘l Entities ” (“FTN 46”). This Interpretation provides guidance with respect to the 
identification of variable interest entities and when the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling 
interests, and results of opcratioiis of a variable interest entity need to be included in a 
corporation’s consolidated financial statements. The Jnterpretation requires consolidalion by 
business enterprises of variable interest cntities in c a m  where (a) the equity invcstinent a t  
risk is not sufkicnt to pennit the entity to finance its activities without additional 
subordinated financial support from other parties, which is provided through other interests 
that will absorb some or all of the expected losses of the entity, or (b) in cases where lhe 
equity invcslors lack onc or iiiore of the essential characteristics of a controlling financial 
interest, which include the ability to iiiahc decisions about the enlity’s activities through 
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voting rights, the obligations to absorb the expected losses of the entity if they occur, or the 
right to receive the expected residual returns of the entity if they occur, Managenient has 
cvaluated the Corporation’s invcstincnts in variable interest entitics and potential variable 
interest entities or transactions, parlicularly in limited liability partnerships involved in low- 
income housing development and trust preferred securities structures. The implementation of 
FTN 46 did not have a significant inipact on either the Corporation’s consolidated financial 
position or consolidated results of operations. Interpretive guidance relating to FIN 46 is 
continuing to evolve and the Corporation’s management will continue to assess various 
aspects of consolidations and variable interest entity accounting as additional guidancc 
becomes available. 

In April 2003, the FASR issued SPAS No. 149, “Amendmwt o/”Stut(wmt 133 on Derivalive 
lnstruments and H&ing Ai*tivities. ” The Statement amends and clarifies financial 
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivativc instruments 
cmbcdded in other contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting,Jiw 
Derivative Irivrstrumenls und Hedging Activities. ” The Statenlent is effective for contracts 
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, with certain exceptions, and for hedging 
relationships designated after June 30, 2003 and is not expected to have an impact on the 
Corporation’s consolidated financial statcincnt s. 

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Aci*ounting .fir Certain Finunriul 
Instruments with Chamcteristics oj’holh Liiihililios lrnd Equity. ” This Statement cstablishes 
standards for how an issuer classifics and measures certain financial instruments with 
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requircs that an issuer classify a financial 
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). Many of 
these instruments were previously classitied as equity. This Statement is effective for 
tinancial instniinents entered into or inodificd after May 3 I ,  2003, and otherwise is effective 
at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for 
mandatory redeemable financial instruments of nonpublic entities. Adoption of thc 
Statement did not result in an impact on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements. 

In November 2003, the FASB’s Emerging Tssues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus on 
a new disclosurc requirement related to uiirealizcd losses on investment securities. The new 
disclosurc requires a table of securities which have unrealized losses as of the reporting date. 
The table must distinguish between those sccuritics which have been in a continuous 
unrealized loss position for twclvc months or more and thosc sccurities which have been in a 
continuous unrealized loss position for less than twclvc months. The table is to include the 
aggregate unrealiLcd losses of securities whose fair values are below book values as of the 
reporting date, and the aggregate fair value of securities whose fair values ;ire below book 
values as of the reporting date. In addition to the quantitative disclosure, FASB requires a 
narrative discussion that provides sufticieiit information to allow tinancial statcincnt users to 
understand the quantitative disclosurcs and the information that was considered in 
dctcnnining whether iiiipainncnl was not other-than-temporary. The new disclosurc 
requirenients apply to fiscal years ending after Dcccmber IS, 2003. The Corporation has 
included the required disclosurcs in their consolidated financial statements. 
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In December 2003, the FASB issued a reviscd version of SFAS No. 132, “Employm’ 
Disclosures ubout Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits an unzendment qf FASB 
Stalemmts N o .  87, 85 and 106. ” This Statetncnt revises employers’ disclosures about 
pension plans and other postretirement benefits. It does not change the measurement or 
recognition of thosc plans required by FASB Statements No. 87, No. 88, and No. 106. This 
Statement retains the disclosure requirements contained in the original FASB Statement No. 
132, which it replaces. However, it requires additional disclosures to those in the original 
Statcinent 132 about the assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic benefit costs of 
defined benefit pension plans and other defined benefit postretirement plans. The rcquired 
information should be provided separately for pension plans and for other postretirement 
benefit plans. The disclosures for earlier annual periods prescnted for comparative purposes 
are required to be restated for (a) the percentages of each major category of plan assets held, 
(b) the accumulated bcnetit obligation, and (c) the assumptions used in the accounting for the 
plans. This Statement i s  effective for financial statements with fiscal years ending after 
December 15, 2003. The interim-period disclosures required by this Statement are cffective 
for interim pcriods beginning after December 15, 2003. The Corporation has included the 
required disclosures in its consolidated financial statcrnents. 

Note 2. Securities 

The amortized cost of securities available for sale, with unrealized gains and losscs follows: 

December 31,2003 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
cost  Gains (Losses) Value 

Obligations of U.S. 
Government corporations 
and agencies $ 46,592,397 $ 254,827 $ (208,599) $ 46,638,625 

Obligations of states and 
political subdivisions 1, I 64,580 72,001 - -  1,236,581 

Corporate bonds 3,000,000 _ -  (7 1,200) 2,928,800 
Restricted investments: 

Federal Home Loan 

Federal Reserve Bank 

Community Bankers’ 

Bank stock 1,000,000 - -  1,000,000 

stock 72,000 - -  - -  72,000 

Bank stock 50,000 - -  - -  50,000 

stock 487,500 - -  (2 7,500) 460,000 
$ 52,366,477 $ 326,828 $ (307,299) $ 52,386,006 

FHLMC Preferred 
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December 31,2002 
Gross 

Unrealized 
(Losses) 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 
Fair 

Value 
Amortized 

cost  
Obligations of U S .  

Government corporations 
and agencies 

Obligations of states and 
political subdivisions 

Corporate bonds 
Mutual Funds 
Restricted investments: 

Federal Home Loan 

Federal Reserve Bank 

Community Bankers' 

Bank stock 

stock 

Bank stock 
FHLMC Preferred 

stock 

$ 58,108,435 $ 852,327 $ (3,999) $ 58,956,763 

1,648,749 
4,259,676 
5,066,023 

7 1,974 
101,505 

1,043 

1,720,723 
4,361,18 1 
5,067,066 

1,028,900 1,028,900 

72,000 72,000 

50,000 50,000 

(7.500) 487.500 480,000 
$ 71,736,633 $ 70,721,283 $ 1,026,849 

c 

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale, by contractual maturity, are shown 
below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual rnaturities because issuers may have the 
right to call or prepay obligations without penalties. 

2003 
Amortized Fair 

cost Value 

Due in one year or less $ 203,606 $ 204,857 
Due aftcr one year through five yer-lrs 17,235,320 17,2 12,202 
Due after five years through ten years 4,33 1,007 4,326,2 17 
Due after ten years 28,986,144 29,060,730 
Fquity securities 1,609,500 1,582,000 

$ 52,366,477 $ 52,386,006 - 

For the years ended December 3 1 ,  2003 and 2002, proceeds from sales of securities available for 
sale amounted to $15,441,768 and $1,033,650, respectively. Gross realized gains amounted to 
$288,333 and $33,914. Gross realized losses werc $40,093 in 2003, and therc were no gross 
realized losses in 2002. The tax expense applicable to this net realized gain amounted to $84,402 
and $11,531. Thcre were no sales of securities available for sale for the year cnded December 31, 
2001. 
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The following table shows the Corporation investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, 
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a 
continuous unrealized loss position, at December 3 I ,  2003. 

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total 
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized 

(Losses) Description of Securities Fair Value (Losses) Fair Value (Losses) Fair Value 

Obligations of U S .  government 
corporations and agencies $ 22,829,608 $ (208,500) $ -I  tfi - -  $ 22,829,608 $ (208,599) 

Corporate bonds 2,928,800 (7 1,200) _ -  ” _  2,928,800 (7 1,200) 
Subtotal, dcbt secunties 25,758,408 (279,799) - -  - -  25,758,408 (279,799) 

Prcferred stock 487,500 (27,500) _ _  - -  487,500 (27,500) 

Total temporarily 
impaired securities $ 26,245,908 $ (307,299) $ _ -  $ - -  $ 26,245,908 $ (307,299) 

The nature of the securities which are tcmporarily impaired can be segmented into three groups. 
The first group consists of four Federal Home Loan Bank securities totaling $10.9 million with a 
temporary loss of $75,000. Within this group, one bond totaling $2.0 million has a remaining 
maturity of approximately 36 months, and the remaining three bonds totaling $8.9 million have 
remaining maturities of approximately 66 months. All bonds within this group have AadAAA 
ratings from Moody’s and Standard & Poors. Thc Corporation has the ability to hold these bonds to 
their maturity. 

The second group consists of six Fcderal agency mortgage-backed securities totaling $11.9 million 
with a temporary loss of $133,599. The securities within this group have estimated maturity dates 
ranging from four months to 37 months, and return principal on a monthly basis representing the 
repayment and prepayment of the underlying mortgages. The Corporation has the ability to hold 
these bonds to their maturity. 

The third group consists of two corporate bonds, both ratcd A2 by Moody’s, totaling $2.9 million 
with a temporary loss of $71,200. Both bonds have rciiiaining maturities of approximately 29 years, 
but can be called at par at their respective five year anniversary. If not called, both bonds reprice 
every three months at a fixed index above LJBOR. The Corporation has the ability to hold these 
bonds to their maturity. 

The final security is preferred stock with Freddie Mac totaling $487,500 with a temporary loss of 
$27,500. The Corporation has the ability to hold this stock. 

The carrying valuc of securities pledged to secure deposits and for other purposes amounted to 
$10,635,147 and $7,023,657 at December 3 1,2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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Note 3. Loans 

A summary of the balances of loans follows: 

December 31, 
2003 2002 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Mortgage loans on real estate: 
Construction 
Secured by farmland 
Secured by 1 to 4 family residential 
Other real estate loans 

Commercial and industrial loans (except 
those sccurcd by real estate) 

Consumer installment loans 
All other loans 

Less: Unearned income 
Total loans 

Allowance for loan losses 
Net loans 

Note 4. Allowance for Loan Losses 

Analysis of the allowance for loan losses follows: 

$ 21,243 $ 10,685 
1,329 2,4 I6 

119,116 76,646 
8 1,884 62,030 

2 1,070 20,386 
4 1,429 35,397 
13,033 9,186 

299,104 2 16,746 
217 138 

3,575 2,9 IO 
$ 295,312 $ 213,698 

2003 2002 2001 

Balance at beginning of year $ 2,900,607 $ 2,856,743 $ 2,554,033 
Provision charged to operating expense 7x4,000 346,250 350,000 
Recoveries added to the allowance 160,089 47,9 18 230,3 I O  
Loan losses charged to the allowance (278,694) (341,304) (277,600) 
Balance at end of year $ 3,575,002 $ 2,909,607 $ 2,X56,743 
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Information about impaired loans is as follows: 

2003 2002 
Impaired loans for which an allowance 

Impaired loans for which no allowance 
has been provided $ 685,712 $ 686,113 

has been provided 
Total impaired loans 

_ -  23,438 
$ 709,150 !$ 686,113 

Allowance provided for impaired loans, 
included in thc allowance for loan losscs $ 50,000 $ 102,000 - A - - 

2003 2002 200 1 

Average balance in impaired loans $ 749,583 $ 855,926 $ 843,586 - 
Interest income recognized 

No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans. 

Nonaccrual loans excluded from the above impaired loan disclosure under FASB 11 4 amounted to 
$258,373, $163,406 and $136,134 at Deccimber 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. If interest 
on these loans had been accrued, such income would have approximated $7,128, $6,938 and $4,066 
for 2003,2002 and 2001, respectivcly. 

Note 5. Related Party Transactions 

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation has granted loans to executive officers, directors, 
their immediate families and affiliated companies in which they are principal sharcholders, which 
amounted to $5,227,922 at Dccember 31, 2003 and $2,217,571 at December 31, 2002. During 
2003, total principal additions were $5,254,338 and total principal payiments were $2,243,987. 
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Note 6. Bank Premises and Equipment, Net 

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment follows: 

2003 2002 

Land $ 2,104,960 
Buildings and improvements 6,563,299 
Furniture and equipment 8,545,969 
Lcaschold improvcrnents 287,463 
Construction in progress 327,556 

17,829,247 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 9,953,823 

$ 7,875,424 

$ 864,667 
6,397,628 
8,037,305 

28 1,363 
10 1,940 

15,682,903 
9,2 14,698 

$ 6,468,205 

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations totaled $1,047,748, $941,787 and $747,886 in 
2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Note 7. Deposits 

The aggregate amount of time deposits, in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 
2003 and 2002 was $30,129,576 and $23,025,164, respectively. 

At December 3 1, 2003, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

$ 45,614,391 
17,928,297 
2,769,324 
3,870,847 
9,054,052 

$ 79,236,91 I 

Overdraft demand deposits totaling $3,9543 18 and $1,574,580 were reclassified to loans at 
December 3 1,2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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Note 8. Employee Benefit Plans 

The following tables provide a reconciliation of thc cliangcs in thc defined benefit plan's obligations 
and fair valuc of assets ovcr the three-year period ending Decciiiber 3 1, 2003, computed as of 
October 1 st of cach respective year: 

- 

2003 
Change in Benefit Obligation 

Benefit obligation, beginning 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Benefits paid 
Benefit obligation, ending 

Change in Plan Assets 
Fair value of plan assets, beginning 
Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Beriefjts paid 
Fair value of plan assets, ending 

Funded status 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 
Unrecognized net obligation at transition 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Accrued benefit cost included in other liabilitics 

$ 5,177,305 
371,747 
360,435 
48 1,228 

(1 15,695) 
$ 6,275,020 

$ 3,684,823 
887,791 
402,810 

( I 15,695) 
$ 4,859,729 

ti; (1,417,481) 
1,335,922 
( I5 1,824) 

62,137 
$ (171,246) 

2002 2001 

$ 4,036,939 $ 3,736,910 
270,440 2 15,762 
300,755 278,253 
7 14,662 (1  15,194) 

(145,491) (78,792) 
$ 5,177,305 $ 4,036,939 -- 

$- 3,774,469 9; 4,410,263 
(379,381) (9 1 4,9 1 0) 
435,226 297,908 

(145.491) (78,792) 
$ 3,684,823 $ 3,774,469 

$ (1,492,482) $ (262,470) 
1,483,542 65,173 
( 170,803 j ( I  89,782) 

69,903 77,669 
$ (109,840) $ (309,410) 

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the plan for thc years 
ended December 3 1,2003,2002 and 200 1 : 

2003 2002 2001 
Components of Net Periodic 

Benefit Cost 
Service cost $ 371,747 $- 270,440 $ 215,762 
Interest cost 360,435 300,755 278,253 
Expected return on plan assets (309,775) (324,326) (399,914) 
Ainortization of prior service cost 7,766 7,766 7,766 
Amortization of net obligation 

at transition (18,979) ( 18,979) ( 18,979) 
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss 50,832 - -  (36,181) 
Net periodic bciiefit cost $ 462,026 $ 235,656 $ 46,707 

~- 
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The assumptions used in the measurement of the Corporation's benefit obligation and net periodic 
benefit cost are shown in the following table: 

2003 2002 2001 
Weighted-Average Assumptions 

as of December 31 
Discount rate 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rate o f  compensation increase 

6.5% 7.0% 7.5% 

5 .O'% 5.0% 5 .0% 
8.5% 9.0% 9.0% 

The plan sponsor selects the expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumption in consultation 
with their advisors and actuary. This rate is intended to reflect the average rate of earnings expected 
to be earned on the funds invested or to be invested to providc plan benefits. Historical 
performance is reviewed especially with respect to real ratcs of return (net of inflation) - for the 
major asset classes held or anticipated to be hcld by the trust, and for the trust itself. Undue weight 
is not given to recent experience - that imay not continue over the measurciiient period - with higher 
significance placed on current forecasts of future long-term cconornic conditions. 

Because assets are held in a qualified trust, anticipated returns are not reduced for taxes. Further, 
solely for this purpose, the plan is assumed to continue in force and not terminate during thc period 
during which assets are invested. However, consideration is given to the potential impact of current 
and future investment policy, cash flow into and out of the trust, and expenses (both investment and 
noii-investment) typically paid from the plan assets (to the extent such expenses are not explicitly 
eslimated within periodic costs). 

The Corporation pension plan's weightcd-average asset allocation at September 30, 2003 and 2002, 
by asset category are as follows: 

2003 2002 
Asset Category 

as of September 30 
Mutual F~iiids - Fixed Income 
Mutual Funds - Equity 
Total 

20.WO 2 5 . O'%) 
80.0% 75.0% 

100.0% 1 O O . W "  
- 

The trust fund i s  sufficiently diversified to maintain a reasonable level of risk without imprudcntly 
sacrificing return, with a targeted asset allocation of 25% fixed income and 75% equities. The 
Investment Manager selects investment fund managers with demonstrated experience and expertise, 
and the funds with demonstrated historical performance, for the implementation of the Plan's 
investment strategy. The lnvestmcnt Manager will consider both actively and passively managed 
investment strategies and will allocate fLinds across the asset classes to develop an efficient 
investment structure. 
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It is the responsibility of the Trustee to administer the investments of the Trust within reasonable 
costs, being careful to avoid sacrificing quality. These costs include, but are not limited to, 
management and custodial fees, consulting fccs, transaction costs and other administrative costs 
chargeable to the Trust. 

The accuinulated benefit obligation for the deferred benefit pension plan was $3,989,306, 
$3,258,355, and $2,578,647 at September 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. 

The Corporation expects to contribute $68,000 to its pension plan in 2004. 

The Corporation has a defined contribution retirement plan under Code Section 401(k) of the 
lnternal Revenue Service covering eimployees who have completed 6 months of service and who arc 
at least 1 X years of age. Under the plan, a participant may contribute an amount up to 15% of their 
covered compensation for the year, subject to certain limitations. The Corporation may also make, 
but is not required to make, a discretionary matching contribution. The amount of this matching 
contribution, if any, is determined on an annual basis by the Board of Directors. The Corporation 
made contributions to the plan for thc years ended December 3 I , 2003,2002 and 2001 of $109,130, 
$1 01,265 and $74,880, respectively. 

The Corporation has a nonqualified deferred compensation program for a key employee’s 
retirement, in which the contribution expensed is solely funded by the Corporation. The retirement 
benefit to be provided is fixed based upon the amount of compensation earned and deferred. 
Deferred compensation expense amounted to $1 59,991, $26,050, and $25,596 for the years ended 
December 3 1 , 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Concurrent with the establishment of the deferred compensation plan, the Chrporation purchased 
life insurance policies on this employee with thc Corporxtion named as owner and beneficiary. 
These life insurance policies are intended to be utilized as a source of funding the deferred 
compensation plan. The Corporation has recorded in other assets $876,801 and $843,799 
representing cash surrender value of these policies for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 
2002, respectively. 

Note 9. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

The Fauyuicr Bank has entered into three long-lcnm banking facility leases. The first lease was 
entered into on January 31, 1999. The leasc provides for an original five-year tcmi with a renewal 
option for additional periods of five years on the Bank’s Sudlcy Road, Manassas branch. The Bank 
renewed the lease January 3 1,2004. Rent for 2004 is expected to be $56,228. 

The second lease for a branch office in Old Town Manassas was entered into on April 10, 2001. 
The lease provides for an original ten-year term with the right to renew for two additional ten-year 
periods beginning on June I ,  2001. Annual rent is $37,400 for the first five years and $40,700 
annually commencing with the sixth year. 
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The third lease is for the accounting and finance department facility and was entered into on 
Junc 25, 2002. The lease has a term of five years beginning on August 1, 2002. Rent for the first 
year is $29,890 with annual increases on the anniversary date based on the CPT, with a minimum 
increase of 3%. Rent for 2004 is expected to be $3 1,259. 

Total rent expense was $ 128,627, $105,072 and $73,076 for 2003,2002 and 2001, respectively, and 
was included in occupancy expense. 

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease requirements required under the long- 
term noncancellable lease agreements: 

2004 $ 124.887 
2005 
2006 
2007 
200x 
Thereafter 

27,30 I 
31,415 
18,262 
03,016 
03,697 

Total $ 708,578 

As members of the Federal Reserve System, the Corporation's subsidiary bank is required to 
maintain certain average reserve balances. For the final weekly reporting period in the years ended 
December 3 I ,  2003 and 2002, the aggregate amounts of daily average required balances were 
approximately $8,036,000 and $12,416,000, respectively. 

In the nornial course of business, therc are outstanding various commitments and contingent 
liabilities, such as guarantecs, commitments to extend credit, etc., which arc not reflected in the 
accoinpanying financial statements. The Corporation does not anticipate losses as a result of these 
transactions. 

See Note 15 with respect to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk. 
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Note 10. Income Taxes 

The components of the net deferred tax assets included in other assets are as follows: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Allowance for loan losses 
Accrued pension obligation 
Interest on iionaccrual loans 
Accrued vacation 
SCRP obligation 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Securities available for sale 
Other 

Accumulated deprcci a t '  ion 

Net deferred tax assets 

2003 

$ 1,081,674 
57,479 
86,837 
68,027 
74,4 13 

1,368,430 

6,708 
702 

222,608 
230,0 I 8 

$ 1,138,412 

2002 

$ 855,440 
38,090 
59,282 
58,582 
20, IO 1 

1,03 1,495 

345,2 I9 
463 

175.402 
521,084 

9; 510,4l I 
~ 

Allocation of federal income taxes between current and deferred portions is as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 

Current tax expense 
Deferred tax (benefit) 

2003 2002 2001 

$ 2,l 10,799 $ 1,864,072 $ 1,673,861 
~- (289,490) -- ( 123,229) (77,080) 
- $ 1,821,309 $ 1,741,743 $ 1,596,781 

The reasons for the difference between the statutory federal incoiiie tax rate and the efyeclive tax 
rates are summarized as follows: 

2003 2002 2001 

Computed "expected" tax expense 
Decrease in income taxes 

rcsulting from: 
Tax-cxeinpt interest incornc 
Other 
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$ 2,093,434 $ 1,928,330 $ 1,738,153 

(238,734) (141,582) (135,625) 
(33,391) (45 ,00>) (5,747) -~ 

$ 1,821,309 $ 1,741,743 - $ 1,596,781 
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Note 1 1 ,  Earnings Per Share 

The following shows the weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share 
and the effect on the weighted average number of shares of diluted potential common stock. 
Potential dilutive common stock had no effect on income available to cornmoil shareholders. 
Weighted average number of shares for all periods reported has been restated to give effect to the 
100% stock dividend in May 2002. 

2003 2002 2001 
Per Share Per Share Per Share 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Basic earnings per share 3,308,124 $ l !  3,312,084 $- 1.18 3,406,866 $ 1.03 

Effect of dilutive securities, 
stock options 172,464 148,044 66,830 

Diluted earnings per share 3 . 4 8 0 , 5 s  $ 1.24 3,460.128 $ 1.14 3,473,696 $_1.01 

Note 12. Stock Option Plans 

Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term lncentive Plan 

In 1998, the Corporation adopted an incentive stock option plan under which options may be 
granted to certain key employees for purchase of the Corporation’s stock. Thc effective date of the 
plan was April 2 1 ,  1998 with a ten-year term. The plan reserves for issuance 400,000 shares of the 
Corporation’s common stock. The stock option plan requires that options be granted at an exercise 
price equal to at least 100% of the fair niarkct value of the conimon stock on the date of the grant; 
however, for those individuals who own more than 10% of the stock of the Corporation, the option 
price must be at least 1 10% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Such options are generally 
not exercisable until three years from the date of issuance and generally requirc continuous 
employnient during thc period prior to cxcrcise. The options will expire in DO rnore than ten ycars 
after the date of grant. The plan was anicndcd and restated cffective January 1, 2000, to include 
non-employee directors and added an additional 180,000 shares to be available to directors. The 
plan provides for an annual issuance to non-employee direclors at the discretion of the 
C’ompensation and Benefits Committee. Options that arc not exercisable at  the time a director’s 
services on the Board terminates for reason other than death, disability or retirement in accordance 
with the Corporation’s pol icy will be forfeited. 
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Director Compensation Plans 

The corporation maintains Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plans. Under the plan expiring in 
1999, each director that was not an employee of the Corporation or its subsidiary rcccived an option 
grant covering 2,240 sharcs of Corporation common stock on April 1 of each year during the five- 
year term of the plan. Thc first grant under the plan was made on May 1 ,  1995. The exercise pricc 
of awards was fixed at the fair market value of the shares on thc date the option was granted. 
During the tern1 of the plan, a total of 120,960 options for shares of common stock were grantcd. 
Effective January 1, 2000, thc Oinnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Incentive Plan for 
employees was amended and restated to include non-employee directors. 

The fair value of each grant is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes Option-Pricing 
Model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

December 31. 
2002 2001 

Dividend yield 2.84% 2.76% 
Expected life 10 years 10 years 
Expcctcd volatility 30.82% 18.32% 
hsk-free interest rate 5.54% 5.1 1% 

The Corporation did not grant options in 2003. 

A summary of the status of the Omnibus Stock Ownership and Long-Term Tncentive Plan and Director 
Compensation Plan is presented below: 

2003 2002 2001 
Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average Average 

Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise 
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price 

Outstanding at January 1 367,556 $ 8.78 342,224 $ 8.22 259,632 $ 9.23 
Granted I_ - _  52, I30 12.85 84,592 8.07 
Excrcjscd (29,174) 7.93 (26,798) 9.23 (2,000) 4.38 
Outstanding at December 3 1 338,382 $ 8.85 367,556 $ 8.78 342,224 $ 8.22 

Exercisable at end of year 2 5 5,606 233,778 190,562 
Weighted-average fair value 

per option of options granted 
during the year !$ 6.28 $ 3.1 I 
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The status of the options outstanding as of December 31, 2003 for the Omnibus Stock Ownership and 
Long-Term lncentivc and Director Compensation Plans is as follows: 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisahle 
Weighted Weighted 

Remaining Average Average 
Contractual Number Exercisc Number Exercise 

Life Outstanding Price Exercisable Price 

1.33 ycars 
2.25 years 
3.25 years 
4.25 ycars 
4.66 years 
5.25 years 
5.66 ycars 
6.60 years 
7.88 ycars 

11,200 
18,920 
20,160 
22,400 

9,146 
24,140 
28, I94 
67,500 
84,592 

s 4.38 
5.06 
6.25 

10.00 
10.50 
9.75 
9.50 
8.13 
8.07 

I 1,200 
18,920 
20, I60 
22,400 

9,146 
24,140 
28,194 
67,500 
2X,2 I4 

$ 4.38 
5.06 
6.25 

10.00 
IO.50 
9.75 
9.50 
8.13 
8.07 

8.08 ycars 26,39X 12.70 _ -  - -  
X . 0 X  ycars 25,732 13.00 25,732 13.00 

338,382 $ 8.85 255,606 - $ 8.62 

The Corporation also maintains a Director Deferred C'ompcnsation Plan (the "Dcfcrrcd 
Cornpensation Plan"). This plan provides that any non-employee director of the Corporation or the 
Rank may elect to dcfcr receipt of all or any portion of his or her compensation as a director. A 
participating director may elect to have amounts deferred under the Deferred C'ompcnsation Plan 
held in a deferred cash account, which is credited on a quarterly basis with interest equal to the 
highest rate offcrcd by the Rank at the end of the preceding quarter. Alternatively, a participant may 
elect to have a deferred stock account in which deferred amounts are treated as if invcstcd in the 
Corporation's common stock at thc fair market value o n  the date of deferral. The value of a stock 
account will increase and decrease based upon the fair market value of an equivalent numbcr of 
shares of common stock. T n  addition, the dcfcwcd amounts deemed invcstcd in common stock will 
be credited with dividends on an equivalent number of shares. Amounts considered invested in the 
Corporation's common stock arc paid, at the election 01' Ihc director, either in cash or in whole 
sharcs o f  the common stock and cash in lieu of fractional sharcs. Jlirectors may elect to rcccivc 
amounts contributed to their respectivc accounts in one or up to five installments. 

Note 13. Fcdcral Home Loan Rank Advanccs and Other Borrowings 

The Corporation's fixed-rate debt of $20,000,000 at Llccember 3 1 ,  2003 matures through 2008. At 
1)ccciiiber 31, 2003 and 2002, the intcrest rates ranged from 1.32 percent to 4.89 percent and from 
4.5 1 percent to 4.89 percent, respectively. At December 3 1, 2003 and 2002, the weighted average 
interest ratcs were 3.8 1 percent and 4.64 percent, rcspectively. 
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Advances on the line are secured by all of the Corporation’s first lien loans on one-to-four unit 
single-family dwellings. As of December 31, 2003, the book value of thesc loans totaled 
approximately $1 10,442,867. The amount of the available credit is limited to seventy-five percent 
of qualifying collateral. Any borrowing in excess of the qualifying collateral requires pledging of 
additional assets. 

The Bank has an available line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB) with 
a borrowing limjt of approximately $60.4 million at December 31, 2003 to provide additional 
sources of liquidity, as well as available federal f h d s  purchased lines of credit with various 
commercial banks totaling $33.1 million. At December 3 1,2003, $20.0 million of the FHLB line of 
credit and $2.0 million of federal funds purchased lines of credit were in use. 

The contractual maturities of FHLB advances are as follows: 

December 31, 
2003 

Due in 2004 
Due in 2006 
Due in 2008 

$ 5,000,000 
1 0,000,000 
5,000,000 

$ 20.000.000 

Note 14. Dividend Limitations on Affiliate Bank 

Transfers of funds from the banking subsidiary to the parent corporation in the form of loans, 
advances and cash dividends are restricted by federal and state regulatory authorities. As of 
December 3 1, 2003, the aggregate amount of unrestricted funds, which could be transferred from 
the banking subsidiary to the parent corporation, without prior regulatory approval, totaled 
$5,654,292. 

Note 15. Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Shcet Risk 

The Corporation is party to credit-related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the 
normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments 
include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to 
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in C X C ~ S S  of the amount recognized in the 
consolidated balance sheets. 

The Corporation’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these 
comimitments. The Corporation follows the same credit policies in making conimitincnts as it does 
for on-balance-sheet instruments. 
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At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the following tinancial instruments were outstanding whose 
contract amounts represent credit risk: 

2003 2002 
Financial instruments whose contract 

ainoiinls rcprcscnt credit risk: 
Commitments to extend credit 
Standby letters of credit 

$ 70, 158,000 $42,  I0 1,000 
I ; ,  192,000 5,0 10,000 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation 
of any condition established i n  the contract. Coniniitments generally have fixed expiration dates or 
other termination clauses and may rcquirc payment of a fee. Since many of thc commitmcnts arc 
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements. The Corporation evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on 
a case-by-case basis. Thc amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Corporation, is 
based on management's credit evaluation of the customer. 

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft 
protection agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing 
customers. These lines of credit are uncollateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity 
date and may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which the Corporation is committed. 

Standby lcttcrs of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Corporation to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support 
public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is 
csscntially thc same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Corporation 
generally holds collateral supporting those commitments if deemed necessary. 

Note 16. Fair Value of Financial Tnstruments and Interest Rate Risk 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash, Short-Term Investments and Federal Funds Sold 

For thosc short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 

Securities 

For securitics and markctable equity securities held for investment purposes, fair values are 
based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. For other securities held as investments, fair 
value equals quoted market price, if available. If a quoted markct pricc is not available, fair 
value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. 
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Loan Receivables 

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair 
values are based on carrying values. Fair values for certain imortgage loans (e.g., one-to-four 
family residential), crcdit card loans, and other consuiner loans are based on quoted market 
prices of similar loans sold in conjunction with sccuritiLation transactions, adjusted for 
differences in loan characteristics. Fair values for other loans (e.g., colninercial real estate and 
investment property mortgage loans, coinimercial and industrial loans) are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with 
similar tenns to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for nonperforming loans arc 
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where 
applicable. 

Accrued Interest 

The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value. 

Deposit Liabilities 

The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest checking, 
statement savings, and certain types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the 
amount payable on demand at the reporting date (Le., their carrying amounts). The carrying 
amounts of variable-rate, tixcd-term moncy market accounts and certificates of deposit 
approxiinate their €air values at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of 
deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates 
currcntly being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities 
on time deposits. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 

The fair values of the C’orpuration’s Federal Home Loan Hank advances are estimated using 
discounted cash flow analyses based on the Corporation’s current iricremental borrowing rates 
for similar types o€ borrowing arrangements. 

Off-Balancc-Sheet Financial Tnstruments 

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to 
enter similar agreements, taking into account lhe remaining terms of‘ the agreements and the 
present credit worthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value 
also considers thc differciice bctween current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. 

The fair value of staiidby letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for siiiiilar 
agreetncnts or on the cstimalcd cos1 to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligatioiis with 
the counterpartics at thc reporting date. 

At December 3 1, 2003 and 2002, the fair value of loan coiiimitments and standby lctters of 
credit were dccined immaterial. 
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The estimated fair values of the Corporation's financial instruments arc as follows: 

2003 
Carrying Fair 
Amount Value 

(Thousands) 
Financial assets: 

Cash and short-term 
investments $ 11,950 $ 1 1,950 

Federal funds sold - -  - -  
Securities 52,386 52,380 
Loans, net 295'3 12 293,470 
Accrued interest receivable 1,233 1,233 

2002 
Carrying Fair 
Amount Value 

(Thousands) 

$ 20,037 $ 20,037 
4,900 4,900 

71,737 7 1,737 
213,698 215,396 

1,240 I ,240 

Financial liabilities: 
Deposits $ 321,129 $ 271,663 $ 273,668 $ 273,631 
FH LR ,advances 20,000 20,413 15,000 16,354 

Company obligated mnandltorily 
redeemable capital sccurities 4,000 3,023 4,000 4,006 

Accrued interest payable 394 394 417 417 

_ _  - -  Federal funds purchased 2,000 2,000 

The Corporation assuines intcrest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels will 
change) as a result of its normal operations. As a result, the fair values of the Corporation's 
financial instruments will change when interest rate levels change and that change may be 
either favorable or unfavorable to the Corporation. Management attempts to match maturities 
of assets and liabilities to the extent believed necessary to minimiLC interest rate risk. 
However, borrowers with fixed rate obligations are less likely to prepay in a rising rate 
environment. Conversely, depositors who are receiving tixed rates are more likely to 
withdraw funds before maturity in a rising ratc environment and less likely to do so in a 
falling rate environment. Management monitors rates and maturities of assets and liabilities 
and attempts to minimize intercst rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans and deposits and 
by investing in sccurities with tenns that mitigate the Corporation's overall interest ratc risk. 

Note 17. Other Operating Expenses 

The principal components of "Other operating expenses" in the C'onsol idated Statements of Jncorne 
arc : 

2003 2002 200 1 

Advertising and business developmcnl 
Bank card 
Data processing 
Postage and supplies 
Professional and consulting fees 
Other (no itcins cxceed 1 %, of total revenuc) 

$ 237,600 
545J 13 
887,627 
366,245 
564,014 

2,085,959 
$ 4,686,758 

$ 418,305 
464,477 
859,522 
387,825 
7 17,899 

I .783.75 1 

$ 398,694 
426,738 
71 9,820 
385,29 I 
700,086 

I .420.90 I 
$ 4.060.530 
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Note 18. Concentration Risk 

The Corporation maintains its cash accounts in several correspondent banks. The total amount by 
which cash on deposit in thosc banks exceeds the federally insured limits is $573,141 at 
Deccniber 3 1. 2003. 

Note 19. Capital Requirements 

The Corporation (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital 
requirements administered by the federal banking agcncies. Failure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by 
rcgulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporation's and the 
Bank's financial statements. Under capital adcquacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action, the Corporation and the Bank must meet specific capital guidclines that 
involve quantitative nieasurcs of their assets, liabilities, and ccrtain off-balance-sheet items as 
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also 
subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weighting, and other 
factors. Prompt corrective action provisions arc not applicable to bank holding companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy rcquirc the Corporation 
and thc Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and 
Tier 1 capital (as dcfmed in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Ticr 1 
capital (as defined) to average asscts (as defined). Management believcs, as of December 3 1, 2003 
and 2002, that the Corporation and the Bank met all capital adequacy requireinciits to which they 
are subject. 

As of Deccnibcr 3 1, 2003, the most recent notification froin the Federal Reserve Bank categorized 
the Bank as well capitalized under the rcgulatory framework for prompt corrcctive action. To be 
categorized as wcll capitalized, an institution must maintain miniinuni total risk-based, Tier 1 risk- 
based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since 
that notification that management bclieves have changed the institution's category. 
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The Corporation's and Subsidiary's actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table. 
No amount was deducted from capital for interest-rate risk. 

Actual 
Minimum Capital 

Reauiremcnt 

Minimum 
To Be Well 

Capitalized Under 
Prompt Corrective 
Action Provisions 

As of December 3 1,2003: 
Total Capital (to Risk 

Weighted Assets): 
Consolidatcd 
The Fauquier Bank 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk 
Weighted Assets): 

Consolidated 
The Fauquier Bank 

Tier 1 Capital (to 
Average Assets): 

Consolidatcd 
The Fauquier Bank 

As of December 3 I ,  2002: 
Total Capital (to Risk 

Weighted Assets): 
Consolidated 
The Fauquier Bank 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk 
Weighted Assets): 

Consolidated 
The Fauquicr Bank 

Tier 1 Capital (to 
Average Assets): 

Consolidated 
The Fauquier Bank 

Amount 

$ 35,850 
$ 35,738 

$ 32,339 
$ 32,227 

$ 32,339 
$ 32,227 

$ 32,254 
$ 32,182 

.R 29,652 
$ 29,580 

$ 29,652 
$ 29,580 

Ratio 

12.8% 
12.7% 

11 .5Yo 
1 I 3% 

8.6% 
8.6% 

15.5% 
15.5% 

14.3% 
14.2% 

9.4% 
9.3% 

Amount Ratio 
(Amount i n  Thousands) 

$ 22,474 8 .O% 
$ 22,468 8.0% 

$ 11,237 4.0% 
$ 11,234 4.0% 

$ 15,072 4.0% 
$ 15,071 4.0% 

$ 16,639 8.0% 
$ 16,630 8 . W n  

$ 8,319 4.0% 
$ 8,315 4.0% 

$ 12,684 4.0% 
$ 12,680 4.0% 

Amount Ratio 

NIA 
$ 28,085 

NIA 
$ 16,851 

NIA 
$ 18,839 

NIA 
$ 20,788 

NIA 
$ 12,473 

N/A 
$ 15,851 

NIA 
10.0%) 

NIA 
6.0% 

NIA 
5 .  O'X 

NIA 
10.0% 

N l h  
6.0% 

N/A 
5.0% 
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Note 20. Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Capital Securities 

On March 11, 2002, Fauquier Statutory Trust T, a wholly-owned subsidiary ofthc Corporation, was 
formed for the purpose of issuing redeemable Capital Securities. On March 26, 2002, $4 million of 
trust preferred securities were issued through a pooled underwriting totaling approximately $564 
million. The securities have a LIBUR-indexed floating rate of interest. During 2003, the interest 
rates ranged from 4.61% to 5.00%. At Decembcr 3 I ,  2003 the weighted-average interest rate was 
4.87%. The securities have a mandatory redemption date of March 26, 2032, and arc subject to 
varying call provisions beginning March 27, 2007. The principal asset of the Trust is $4.1 million 
of the Corporation’s junior subordinate debt securities with the like iiiaturities and like interest rates 
to the Capital Securities. 

The Trust Preferred Securities may be included in Tier I capital for regulatory capital adequacy 
determination purposes up to 25% of Ticr 1 capital after its inclusion. The portion of the Trust 
Preferred not considered as Tier 1 capital may be included in Tier 2 capital. 

The obligations of the Corporation with rcspect to thc issuance ofthe Capital Securities constitute a 
full and unconditional guarantee by the Corporation of the Trust’s obligations with respect to the 
Capital Securities. 

Subject to certain exception and limitations, the Corporation may elect from time to time to defer 
interest payment on the junior subordinated debt securities, which would result in a deferral of 
distribution payments on thc related Capital Securities. 
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Note 2 1. Parent Corporation Only Financial Statements 

FAUQUTER BANKSHARES, INC. 
(Parent Corporation Only) 

Balance Sheets 
December 3 1,2003 and 2002 

Assets 

Cash on deposit with subsidiary bank 
Invcstment in subsidiaries, at cost, 

Dividend receivable 
Other assets 

plus equity in undistributed net income 

December 31, 
2003 2002 

$ 295,608 $ 246,995 

32,391,802 30,373,777 
43 0,5 90 363,447 
155,247 122,947 

$ 33,273,247 $ 31,107,166 
I 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

Liabilities 
Company-obligated inandatorily redeemable capital securities 
Dividend payablc 
Other liabilities 

Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock 
Retained earnings, which are substantially 

Accumulated other comprehensive incoinc 
distributed earnings of subsidiaries 

4,124,000 
430,590 
255,872 

4,810,462 

10,367,280 

18,082,684 
12.821 

2 8.462.7 85 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 33,273,241 - 

$ 4,124,000 
363,447 
188,554 

4,676,00 I 

10,34 1,726 

15,419,307 
670.132 

26,43 I ,  I65 

$ 31,107,166 - 
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FAUQUIEK BANKSHAKES, INC. 
(Parent Corporation Only) 

Statements of Income 
For Each oi’the Three Years in the Period Ended December 3 1 ,  2003 

2003 2002 2001 

Revenue, 
dividends froin subsidiaries 

Expenses 
Interest expense 
Legal and professional fws 
Directors’ fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total expenses 

Income before income tax benefit 
and equity in undistributed net 
income of subsidiaries 

Income tax (benefit) 

Income before equity in 
undistributed net income 
01’ subsidiaries 

Equity in undistributed net iiicome 
of subsidiaries 

Nct income 

194,897 170,379 - -  
46, 129 10 1,073 213,624 
30,544 53,010 52,432 
73,303 76,889 35,963 

344,873 40 1,35 1 117,019 

1,543,257 1,876,336 2,4 1 3,7 13 

( I 17,257) ( 136,459) (39,786) 

1,660,5 14 2,012,795 2,453,4913 

2,675,336 1,917,021 1,061,935 

$ 4,335,850 - $ 3,929,816 $ 3,515,434 
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FAUQUIER BANKSHARES, INC. 
(Parent Corporation Only) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For Each of the Tliree Years in the Period Ended December 3 I ~ 2003 

2003 2002 2001 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Net income 
Adj ustnients to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by opcrating aclivilics: 
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 
(Increase) in undistributed dividends 

Tax benefit of nonqualified options exercised 
(Increase) decrease in other assets 
liicrease (decrease) in other liabilities 

receivable from subsidiaries 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from issuance of capital securities 
Contribution ol’capital lo subsidiarics 
Cash dividends paid 
Issuance or  comiiion slock 
Acquisition o f  coimiioii stock 

Net cash (used in) financing activities 

Increase in cash arid cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Bcgiiiiiiiig 

En di 11 g 

$ 4,335,850 $ 3,929,816 !$ 3,515,434 

(2,675,336) (1,917,021 j (1,041,935) 

(67,143) (45,091 j (27,284) 

32,007 254,822 (377,769) 
67,3 18 19,372 43,465 

1,628,389 2,224,784 2,091,911 

(64,307) (17,114) - -  

- -  4,124,000 - -  
- -  (4,124,000) _ _  

(1,520,987) (1,3 10,949) ( 1,194,739 j 
295,697 307,520 28,309 

(354,486) (1,050,524) (895,94 1 ) 
( 1,579,776) (2,053,953) (2,062,37 I ) 

4X,6 13 17033 1 29,540 

246,995 ._ . - 76, I64 46,624 

$ 295,608 $ 246,995 $ 76,164 
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FAUQUIER BANKSHARES, INC. 
General Information 

Executive Offices 
10 Courthouse Square 
PO Box 561 
Warrenton, Va. 201 88 
www.fauquierbank .corn 

Annual Meeting 
The 2004 Annual Meeting nf Shareholdcrs will be 
held at 11:OO a.m. on May 18, 2004 at Thc Fauyuier 
Springs Country Club. 

Stock Listing 
Common shares of Fauquicr Rankshares, Inc. are 
traded on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market under 
the symbol FBSS. 

Quarterly Common Stock Prices and Dividends 
The high and low price of The  Fauquier Banksharcs 
common stock for each quarter of 2002 and 200.3 
and the dividends paid per sharc arc shown below. 

Marker Price 

Quarter 
Ended 
2002 
March 31 
June 30 

Dec 31 

2003 
March 31 
June 30 

llec 31 

Sept 30 

Sept 30 
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High 

13.50 
16.35 
15.10 
16.90 

17.49 
17.53 
18.52 
22.95 

Dividends 
Low Paid 

12.06 .10 
13.25 .10 
13.91 . lo 
14.42 ,11 

14.35 . I1  
15.50 . I  2 
17.16 .I2 
18.20 .13 

Investor Information 
To obtain financial information on Fauquier 
Rankshares, Inc. contact Eric P. Graap, 
Chief Financial Officcr at  (540) 349-02 12, 
egraap@faUquierbank.com, o r  through the Internct 
at http://www.fauyuierbank.com 

Corporate Publications 
Fauquier Bankshares, Inc. Annual Report and 
Form 1 0-K, Quarterly Reports and other cnrporatc 
pitblications are available on request by writing or 
calling our  Investor Relations Department at 
(540) 347-2700. The Securities and Exchange 
Cnminission (SEC) tiiaintains a web site which 
contains reports, proxy and information stateiiicnts 
pertaining to rcgistrants which file electronically 
wirh rhe SEC, including Fauyuier Bankshares, Inc, 
The  SEC's web site address is http://www.sec.gov. 

Stock Transfer Agent 
Shareholders seeking help with a change of address, 
records or information about lost certificates or 
dividend checks should contact our  rransfer agent as 
follows: 

American Stock Transfcr & Trust Company 
549 Maiden Lane 
New York, New York 10038 
i nfo@amstoc k.com www, arnstock.com 
1-800-937-5499 

Local Fauquicr Bank Contact: 
Toy L. Pearson, Assistant Vice President 
TFB Wealth Management Services 
10 Courthouse Square 
Warrenton, Virginia 20186 
540-349-0234 

mailto:egraap@faUquierbank.com
http://www.fauyuierbank.com
http://www.sec.gov
http://arnstock.com
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